
 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, OX28 1NB 
www.westoxon.gov.uk Tel: 01993 861000 

 
Friday, 19 February 2021 

 
Tel:  

e-mail democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk 

 
UPLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 
You are summoned a meeting of the Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee will be held 
remotely, via Cisco Webex on Monday, 1 March 2021 at 2.00 pm. 

 

 
Giles Hughes 
Chief Executive 
 
 
To: Members of the Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 
 
Councillors: Councillor Jeff Haine (Chairman), Councillor Geoff Saul (Vice-Chair), 

Councillor Andrew Beaney, Councillor Richard Bishop, 
Councillor Mike Cahill, Councillor Nigel Colston, Councillor 
Julian Cooper, Councillor Derek Cotterill, Councillor Merilyn 
Davies, Councillor David Jackson, Councillor Neil Owen and 
Councillor Alex Postan 

 
Due to the current social distancing requirements and guidance relating to Coronavirus 
Regulations 2020 – Part 3 – Modification of meetings and public access requirements 
this meeting will be conducted remotely using Cisco Webex. 
 
Members of the public will be able to follow the proceedings through a broadcast on 
West Oxfordshire District Council Facebook account (You do not need a Facebook 
account for this). 
 

 

Recording of Proceedings – The law allows the public proceedings of Council, Cabinet, 
and Committee Meetings to be recorded, which includes filming as well as audio-
recording.  Photography is also permitted. By participating in this meeting, you are 
consenting to be filmed. 
 
As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record any part of the proceedings please let the 
Committee Administrator know prior to the start of the meeting. 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/
https://www.facebook.com/westoxfordshire/live


 

 
 

AGENDA 
 
1.   Minutes of Previous Meeting  

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 1 February 2021 

 
2.   Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  

 
3.   Declarations of Interest  

To receive any declarations from Members of the Committee on any items to be 
considered at the meeting 
 

4.   Applications for Development (Pages 3 - 38) 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development, details of which are set out in the 

attached schedule. 

Recommendation: 

That the applications be determined in accordance with the recommendations 

of the Business Manager – Development Management. 

 
5.   Progress on Enforcement Cases (Pages 39 - 50) 

Purpose: 

To inform the Sub-Committee of the current situation and progress in respect of 

enforcement investigations.  

Recommendation: 

That the progress and nature of the outstanding enforcement investigations 

detailed in Sections A – C of Annex A to the report be noted. 

 
6.   Applications Determined under Delegated Powers and any Withdrawn 

Applications; and Appeal Decisions (Pages 51 - 62) 

Purpose: 

To inform the Sub-Committee of applications either determined under 

delegated powers or withdrawn, together with appeal decisions. 

Recommendation: 

That the report be noted. 

 
 
(END) 

Page 2



Item No. 4, Page 1 of 36 

 

 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

  

UPLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

Date: 1st March 2021 

 

 
REPORT OF THE BUSINESS MANAGER-DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development details of which are set out in the following pages. 

 

Recommendations: 

To determine the applications in accordance with the recommendations of the Strategic Director. 

The recommendations contained in the following pages are all subject to amendments in the light of 

observations received between the preparation of the reports etc and the date of the meeting. 

 

List of Background Papers 

 

All documents, including forms, plans, consultations and representations on each application, but 

excluding any document, which in the opinion of the ‘proper officer’ discloses exempt information as 

defined in Section 1001 of the Local Government Act 1972.        

                                                 

Please note that 0bservations received after the reports in this schedule were prepared will be 

summarised in a document which will be published late on the last working day before the meeting and 

available at the meeting or from www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings  

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings


Item No. 4, Page 2 of 36 

 

 

Application 

Number 

Address Page 

20/02830/FUL Chevrons, Swan Lane, Burford 

 

3 

20/02831/LBC Chevrons, Swan Lane, Burford 

 

13 

20/02635/S73 High Thatch, Park Lane, Long Hanborough 

 

19 

20/02848/FUL Fardon House, Frog Lane, Milton-Under-Wychwood 

 

24 

20/03444/S73 5 - 12 Chipping Norton Road, Chadlington 

 

30 

Page 4



Item No. 4, Page 3 of 36 

 

 

Application Number 20/02830/FUL 

Site Address Chevrons 

Swan Lane 

Burford 

Oxfordshire 

OX18 4SH 

Date 17th February 2021 

Officer Chloe Jacobs 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Burford Parish Council 

Grid Reference 425139 E       212075 N 

Committee Date 1st March 2021 

 

Location Map 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  

 

Application Details: 

Erection of single storey extension to main dwelling and conversion of existing garden store to create 

self contained holiday let. Provision of additional vehicular access together with associated parking and 

landscaping works. (amended plans) 

 

Applicant Details: 

Mrs D Bigwood, Charts Edge, Hosey Hill, Westerham, TN16 1PL 

Page 5



Item No. 4, Page 4 of 36 

 

1  CONSULTATIONS 

 

1.1 OCC Highways The proposal, if permitted, will result in an access lacking adequate 

pedestrian awareness visibility and vehicle intervisibility. However 

vehicles parked on street up to the site walls adjacent to the property 

keep vehicles/pedestrians 'on the other side' of 

the carriageway. I note details in Manual for Streets regarding parked 

vehicles and visibility. 

 

There is no footway fronting the site so pedestrians must share the 

carriageway with vehicles. 

 

The proposal will result in the loss of an on street parking space. 

 

Given the low traffic flows and speeds I cannot demonstrate sufficient 

harm to warrant the refusal of the application for reasons of highway 

safety and convenience.  

 

The proposal, if permitted, will not have a significant detrimental 

impact ( in terms of 

highway safety and convenience ) on the adjacent highway network 

 

Recommendation: 

 

Oxfordshire County Council, as the Local Highways Authority, 

hereby notify the District Planning Authority that, on balance, they do 

not object to the granting of planning permission, subject to the 

conditions. 

 

1.2 Historic England No Comment Received. 

 

1.3 Parish Council The Council strongly opposes this application on the following 

grounds:- 

 

1. It proposes substantial over-development of a small Cotswold 

cottage and a very small Cotswold garden. 

 

2. The proposed conversion of the shed at the end of the 

garden into living accommodation will (a) encroach on the 

light and privacy of the neighbour's conservatory and (b) 

result in a structure having a larger foot print than the 

existing building. 

 

3. The creation of an additional pair of double gates will (a) 

require the loss of two car parking spaces at a time when 

Burford is desperately trying to increase its number of 

parking spaces and (b) involve the partial destruction of an 

historic boundary wall. 

 

4. The change to the existing double gates to make them open 

Page 6



Item No. 4, Page 5 of 36 

 

outwards instead of inwards as they do at the moment is 

farcical.  They will completely block the pavement and 

protrude significantly into the carriageway! 

 

See our previous response in November 2020. 

 

1.4 Parish Council Council had concerns over the second entrance to the property 

which is 5 meters away from the existing resulting in two parking 

spaces being lost on the highway.  The holiday let will be dominant.  

Over and above these objections the new 2 storey building would 

overshadow the conservatory of the next door property, shading it 

and taking light and sun. This is against Planning Policies OS2 and OS 

4.  OS2 is the quality of development and OS4 is development in the 

right place 

 

2  REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1  6 letters of objection have been received. These objections can be summarised as follows: 

 

2.2 Siting, design and layout 

 

 The site is too small to accommodate the proposed development, overdevelopment within 

a very small plot. 

 

 The additional height of the outbuilding would encroach visually on Swan Lane  

 

 The internal layout of the outbuilding would provide a sub-standard living environment 

 

 The development as a whole would involve the almost complete paving-over of, and loss of 

planting in, what should be a back garden. 

 

2.3 Heritage Asset 

 

 The addition to the Listed Building would be detrimental to its character 

 

 The design of the unit at the end of the garden is unsympathetic both to the LB and to the 

character and appearance of the Conservation Area and would do nothing to preserve or 

enhance. 

 

 This proposal further erodes the intrinsic character of this town 

 

 The development is not in keeping with the C15th property opposite or the centre of town 

with its gothic origins. 

 

2.4 Residential amenity 

 

 The outbuilding would severely diminish the South light onto Cygnet cottage's garden and 

conservatory 

 

 The outbuilding would overshadow the neighbouring conservatory at Cygnet Cottage 

Page 7



Item No. 4, Page 6 of 36 

 

 

 Holiday lets can be a source of noise and disturbance and are inappropriate in this 

tightlypacked urban area 

 

 The holiday let would overlook Swan Gallery 

 

2.5 Highways safety and convenience 

 

 The proposed new entrance would result in a reduction of parking spaces available along 

Swan Lane 

 

 Burford suffers from too little parking in the town, essential for the viability of the 

businesses in Burford. 

 

 Swan lane is very narrow and the opening of the gate would cause further problems for 

traffic turning off the A361.  

 

 There is no pedestrian pavement along Swan Lane adding to the problems of safety and 

congestion 

 

2.6 Other matters 

 

 How would building works be controlled - deliveries etc - we already suffer from the 

building works being carried out at Walnut Tree Cottage further down Swan Lane and the 

number of vans, etc. it seems to take to achieve any building work is massive, and the noise 

from 7.00 a.m. also needs to be considered. All this would have an impact on the residents 

on Swan Lane and the High Street 

 

 This application would so hugely devalue Swan Gallery, and it's business viability 

 

 The Studio will be significantly disrupted by construction projects 

 

 The peace and tranquillity of my life which I have enjoyed here in The Studio for over 10 

years will unfortunately be changed significantly during construction and I fear will be 

changed for the long term if the new holiday let at the rear of the Chevrons site is given 

planning approval. 

 

3  APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1  The Planning, Design and Access Statement is concluded as follows:  

 

4  PLANNING POLICIES 

 

 OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

 OS4NEW High quality design 

 H6NEW Existing housing 

 E4NEW Sustainable tourism 

 EH1 Cotswolds AONB 

 EH9 Historic environment 

 EH10 Conservation Areas 

Page 8



Item No. 4, Page 7 of 36 

 

 EH11 Listed Buildings 

 EH12 Traditional Buildings 

 EH13 Historic landscape character 

 DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

 NPPF 2019 

 DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

 The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5  PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

5.1 This application seeks planning permission for the erection of a single storey extension to the 

main dwellinghouse and a replacement outbuilding  to create ancillary accommodation. The 

application also seeks planning permission for the provision of additional vehicular access 

together with associated parking and landscaping works.  

 

5.2 For the avoidance of doubt, the whole site (including the main dwelling) is intended to be used 

as a holiday let and the outbuilding/garden room would provide ancillary accommodation in 

association with this. The use of the main dwelling as a holiday let does not require planning 

permission as it will remain as a C3 use.  

 

5.3 The application site relates to Chevrons, Swan Lane in Burford. The site comprises a Grade II 

listed building located within the Burford Conservation Area and The Cotswolds Area of 

Outstanding Natural Beauty. 

 

5.4 Amended plans have been submitted following concerns raised by the Conservation and Design 

Officer. These amendments include alterations to the size, scale and design of the proposed 

extension to the main house so that it now reflects a clear, lightweight addition and changes to 

the new outbuilding/structure so that it now reflects a low level, traditionally pitched roof 

forming a structure that has the appearance of an open fronted cart shed. 

 

5.5 An application for listed building consent has also been submitted for these works which 

includes internal alterations to the main listed building.  

 

5.6 The application is before Members of the Uplands Planning Sub-committee as the Parish Council 

has raised objections to the application contrary to your officer's recommendation. 

 

5.7 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application 

are:  

 

 Principle;  

 Siting, Design and Form;  

 Impact on Heritage Assets;  

 Impact on Cotswold AONB;  

 Highways;  

 Residential Amenity 

 Other Matters 

 

 

 

Page 9



Item No. 4, Page 8 of 36 

 

 Principle 

 

5.8 Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires applications for 

planning permission be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material 

considerations indicate otherwise.  Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

provides that the local planning authority shall have regard to the provisions of the development 

plan, so far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations.  In the case 

of West Oxfordshire, the Development Plan is the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 adopted 

in September 2018. 

 

5.9 Whilst your officers consider that the use of the main dwelling as a holiday let does not require 

a change of use as it will still be classed as a C3 use  your officers note that policy E4 of the 

West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 specifies that new tourist and visitor buildings should be 

located within or close to service centres and villages and reuse existing appropriate buildings 

where possible. The application site is located within the heart of Burford, which is identified as 

a Rural Service Centre within Policy OS2 and therefore, the site is considered to be a 

reasonably sustainable location for a tourist accommodation use.  

 

 Siting, Design and Form 

 

5.10 The proposal seeks to remove the existing, modern mono pitch single-storey structure to the 

north of the site and the oil tank along with its enclosed wall structure and roof situated along 

the southern boundary. In its place, the proposal seeks to construct a new extension which 

comprises two elements: 

 

 a) a small-scale solidly constructed flat roof element  

 b) a glazed element constructed using frameless contemporary glass.   

 

5.11 The proposal seeks to change an existing sash window opening within the rear elevation to 

create a doorway, providing access from the principal listed building into the new extension. 

Your officers are of the opinion that the proposed replacement extensions would represent a 

clear secondary and subservient addition to the main dwelling. The proposal seeks to utilise 

both traditional materials such as natural stone as well as more modern materials such as glazing 

to create a visually appropriate addition to the main dwelling. The proposed modern structure 

would be lightweight and would allow for views of the existing listed fabric to be read.  

 

5.12 The proposal also seeks to remove the existing outbuilding to the rear of the site and to replace 

this with a new outbuilding. The amended scheme now proposes a low lying, traditional pitched 

roof outbuilding which would sit approximately 3m tall. The proposed outbuilding seeks to 

utilise materials such as natural stone, oak beams and posts along with slate roof tiles. These 

materials are considered to visually appropriate as they are in keeping with the existing 

dwellinghouse and the character and appearance of the surrounding area. The new outbuilding 

would sit on a similar albeit slightly larger footprint to that of the existing garden store. The 

proposed outbuilding would provide for additional, ancillary accommodation to serve the main 

house. Your officers are therefore of the opinion that by reason of its siting, design and scale 

that the proposed replacement outbuilding would reflect a clear, secondary and ancillary 

outbuilding to serve the main dwelling. In addition to this, it is considered that given the 

proposed outbuilding would replace an untidy, dilapidated garden store that the proposed 

would result in a visual enhancement of the site. 

 

Page 10



Item No. 4, Page 9 of 36 

 

5.13 In addition to this, the proposal seeks to create a new opening within the southern boundary 

wall. This opening would provide for additional off-street car parking space within the curtilage 

of Chevrons. Your officers are of the opinion that the proposed access would be an appropriate 

addition along the boundary wall and as such is considered to be acceptable.  

 

 Impact on Heritage Assets 

 

5.14 Within a Conservation Area, officers are required to take account of section 72(1) of the 

Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended which states that, with 

respect to buildings or other land in a conservation area, special attention shall be paid to the 

desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that area.  Further the 

paragraphs of section 16 'Conserving and enhancing the historic environment ' of the NPPF are 

relevant to consideration of the application. 

 

5.15 Further, as the site is Grade II Listed, your officers are required to take account of section 66 of 

the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended which states that 

in considering whether to grant listed building consent for any works the local planning 

authority shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building, its setting and 

any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. 

 

5.16 Paragraph 193 of the NPPF provides when considering the impact of a proposal on a designated 

heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset's conservation. Where a proposal 

results in less than substantial harm to a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed 

against the public benefits of the proposal (paragraph 196).  

 

5.17 The Conservation Officer has advised that the proposed works f would not greatly affect any 

significant fabric. The internal alterations have been sensitively addressed in order to ensure the 

significance of this building is not affected by the proposed works.  

 

5.18 The proposed extension is considered to be an enhancement compared to the existing modern 

extension, and will still preserve the character of the listed building. The new scheme will 

achieve a far less cluttered and much easier to understand extension and the design detail still 

allows a large portion of the stone gable to be visible so that it retains some of its legibility. 

 

5.19 Consequently, the proposals relating to the principal house are considered to be a public / 

heritage benefit.  This is because the works to refurbish this building into a habitable condition 

and replace and improve the existing unexceptional extensions with better designed 

contemporary versions will secure its continued viable use as a residence.  The works will also 

conserve and improve its significance and historic fabric by addressing alterations in a sensitive 

manner, using appropriate and compatible materials.  The proposal will result in a net gain in 

heritage terms preserving the historic fabric, character and appearance of this listed building.  

 

5.20 As for the outbuilding to the rear of the site, your officers are of the opinion that the current 

structure has no historical or architectural significance; rather its dilapidated appearance is 

considered to have a deleterious impact on the views and appearance of the heritage assets.  

The new structure is proposed to be a low level traditionally pitched roof forming a structure 

that has the appearance of an open fronted cart shed, with an oak beam over the eaves and oak 

post in the centre. Consequently, its replacement is considered to be an enhancement at this 

location by improving the street scene, appearance, views and setting of all heritage assets. 

Furthermore, the views out from the principal listed building will be enhanced by this proposal.  

Page 11



Item No. 4, Page 10 of 36 

 

Therefore it is considered that the proposed would result in no harm to the heritage assets; the 

current structure has no intrinsic significance, and its conversion and alteration is considered to 

have a positive impact on the overall appearance, character and setting of all of the heritage 

assets. 

 

5.21 With regard to the new opening in the boundary wall, the proposal seeks to create a new 

opening of historic fabric. It is considered that this alteration to the conservation area is 

considered to be of less than substantial harm, however, there have been at least three blocked 

openings identified in the existing wall. The proposed gate design / details are appropriate for 

the area and are in keeping with existing openings along Swan Lane. Given this, it is considered 

that the proposal overall does not significantly harm the character and appearance of the 

heritage assets and is therefore considered to be supportable.  

 

5.22 Overall it is considered that the proposed development would result in less than substantial 

harm to the listed buildings and this less than substantial harm would be outweighed by the 

public/heritage benefits of the proposal. The proposed development would respect the special 

qualities and historic context of the Conservation Area and would maintain the appearance of 

the heritage asset given the nature of what is proposed and its location. The proposed 

development would conform to policies EH10 and EH11 of the Local Plan. 

 

 Impact on Cotswold AONB 

 

5.23 Paragraph 172 of the NPPF has regard to the weight to be given to conserving the landscape and 

scenic beauty of the AONB. In this instance given the built up residential context of the site, and 

the siting, scale and form of the dwellings which would retain the visually open character and 

appearance at the front of the site, the development will not be visible beyond its immediate 

setting and will therefore preserve the wider landscape and scenic beauty of the Cotswold 

AONB. 

 

 Highways 

 

5.24 The proposal seeks to create a new opening within the southern boundary wall. This opening 

would provide for off-street car parking spaces within the rear garden of Chevrons.  

 

5.25 A number of objections have been raised in regards to the impact the proposed development 

would have in terms of increased traffic movements. Concerns have also been raised in regards 

to the impact the additional gate/access would have in that this would remove the provision of a 

car parking space along Swan Lane. 

 

5.26 Whilst officers note these concerns, the Local Highway Authority has been consulted on the 

application and has raised no objections in regards to highways safety and convenience. On this 

basis, the scheme is considered acceptable and complies with policy T4 of the West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan 

 

 Residential Amenities 

 

5.27 In terms of the impact on neighbouring amenity, this has been carefully assessed.  

 

5.28 In regards to the extension to the main house, given the single storey nature of the 

development and that the proposal seeks to replace an existing structure, your officers are of 

Page 12



Item No. 4, Page 11 of 36 

 

the opinion that the proposed would not be overbearing or result in any overlooking, loss of 

light or loss of privacy.  

 

5.29 In regards to the proposed garden room to the rear of the site, concerns had been raised in 

respect to the original scheme in that it would result in a loss of light to the neighbouring 

property to the rear. The scheme has been amended and now proposes an outbuilding which 

would sit approximately 0.2m taller than the existing structure. In addition to this, the proposed 

outbuilding has also been set away from the northern boundary wall which it shares with Cygnet 

Cottage by approximately 0.6m and as such your officers are of the opinion that the proposed 

replacement outbuilding would not result in any significant levels of overlooking, overshadowing 

or loss of sunlight towards the conservatory at Cygnet Cottage. 

 

 Other matters 

 

5.30 Some concerns have been raised in regards to the construction of the development and the 

impact this would have in terms of noise disturbance and in terms of highways safety. Your 

officers note these concerns and are of the opinion that it would be unreasonable to add a 

construction management condition given the householder scale and nature of the application. 

Working and construction hours are controlled by separate legislation and are enforced by the 

Council's Environmental Health Team. 

 

5.31 Other objections have been received in regards to the proposed development devaluing the 

viability of the neighbouring business at Swan Gallery. Whilst your officers note these concerns, 

the impact of the development on the value and viability of the neighbouring properties and 

businesses is not a material planning consideration and advices members that there is not a 

threat of litigation should the proposal be approved. 

 

5.32 In addition to this, other concerns and objections have been raised in regards to the impact the 

proposed development would have on disrupting the peace and tranquillity of the area, again 

your officers note these concerns however they are not a material planning consideration and as 

such cannot be taken into consideration when determining this application.  

  

 Conclusion 

 

5.33 In light of the above, the application is considered to be acceptable and compliant with policies 

OS2, OS4, H6, E4, EH1, EH9, EH10, EH11, and T4 of the adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan 

2031, the West Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016, and the relevant provisions of the NPPF. 

 

6  CONDITIONS 

 

 

1.   The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the 

date of this permission. 

 REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 

1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

2.   That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

Page 13



Item No. 4, Page 12 of 36 

 

3.   Before above ground building work commences, a schedule of materials (including samples) to 

be used in the elevations and roofs of the development shall be submitted to and approved in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be constructed in the approved 

materials. 

 REASON: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area.   

 

4.   Notwithstanding details contained in the application, detailed specifications and drawings of all 

external windows and doors to include elevations of each complete assembly at a minimum 1:20 

scale and sections of each component at a minimum 1:5 scale and including details of all 

materials, finishes and colours shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority before that architectural feature is commissioned/erected on site. The 

development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  

 REASON: To ensure the architectural detailing of the buildings reflects the established character 

of the area. 

 

5.   The car parking areas (including where appropriate the marking out of parking spaces) shown on 

the approved plans shall be constructed before occupation of the development and thereafter 

retained and used for no other purpose. 

 REASON: To ensure that adequate car parking facilities are provided in the interests of road 

safety. 

 

6.   Within a month of the commencement of the access, driveway and parking area, surface water 

from the site shall be prevented from entering the public highway in accordance with a scheme 

shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

 REASON: In the interest of highway safety and convenience. 

 

7.   The new access gates to and from the land shall be constructed in accordance with the 

approved plans before occupation of any building. The proposed gates must not open over the 

public highway and should be retained thereafter. 

 REASON: In the interest of highway safety and convenience. 

 

 

NOTES TO APPLICANT: 

 

1. Please note If works are required to be carried out within the public highway, the applicant shall 

not commence such work before formal approval has been granted by Oxfordshire County 

Council by way of legal agreement between the applicant and Oxfordshire County Council 

 

 

Page 14



Item No. 4, Page 13 of 36 

 

 
Application Number 20/02831/LBC 

Site Address Chevrons 

Swan Lane 

Burford 

Oxfordshire 

OX18 4SH 

Date 17th February 2021 

Officer Chloe Jacobs 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Burford Parish Council 

Grid Reference 425139 E       212075 N 

Committee Date 1st March 2021 

 

Location Map 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

Application Details: 

Internal and external alterations to erect single storey extension to main dwelling with changes to 

internal layout. Conversion of existing garden store to create self contained holiday let. Provision of 

additional vehicular access together with associated parking and landscaping works. (amended plans) 

 

Applicant Details: 

Mrs D Bigwood, Charts Edge, Hosey Hill, Westerham,TN16 1PL 

Page 15



Item No. 4, Page 14 of 36 

 

1  CONSULTATIONS 

 

1.1 Conservation Officer I raise no objection to the proposal subject to policies: D11, D33, 

E12 and E17 - also material samples. 

 

Relevant policies EH9, EH10, EH11, EH12, EH13 and OS4, and the 

NPPF Section 16, and WODC Design Guidance Section 11 & 14.  

 

1.2 Parish Council No Comment Received. 

 

1.3 Historic England  No Comment Received. 

 

2  REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1  6 letters of objection have been received. These objections can be summarised as follows: 

 

2.2 Siting, design and layout 

 

 The site is too small to accommodate the proposed development, overdevelopment within 

a very small plot. 

 

 The additional height of the outbuilding would encroach visually on Swan Lane  

 

 The internal layout of the outbuilding would provide a sub-standard living environment 

 

 The development as a whole would involve the almost complete paving-over of, and loss of 

planting in, what should be a back garden. 

 

2.3 Heritage Asset 

 

 The addition to the Listed Building would be detrimental to its character 

 

 The design of the unit at the end of the garden is unsympathetic both to the LB and to the 

character and appearance of the Conservation Area and would do nothing to preserve or 

enhance. 

 

 This proposal further erodes the intrinsic character of this town 

 

 The development is not in keeping with the C15th property opposite or the centre of town 

with its gothic origins. 

 

2.4 Residential amenity 

 

 The outbuilding would severely diminish the South light onto Cygnet cottage's garden and 

conservatory 

 

 The outbuilding would overshadow the neighbouring conservatory at Cygnet Cottage 

 

 Holiday lets can be a source of noise and disturbance and are inappropriate in this 

tightlypacked urban area 

Page 16



Item No. 4, Page 15 of 36 

 

 

 The holiday let would overlook Swan Gallery 

 

2.5 Highways safety and convenience 

 

 The proposed new entrance would result in a reduction of parking spaces available along 

Swan Lane 

 

 Burford suffers from too little parking in the town, essential for the viability of the 

businesses in Burford. 

 

 Swan lane is very narrow and the opening of the gate would cause further problems for 

traffic turning off the A361.  

 

 There is no pedestrian pavement along Swan Lane adding to the problems of safety and 

congestion 

 

2.6 Other matters 

 

 How would building works be controlled - deliveries etc - we already suffer from the 

building works being carried out at Walnut Tree Cottage further down Swan Lane and the 

number of vans, etc. it seems to take to achieve any building work is massive, and the noise 

from 7.00 a.m. also needs to be considered. All this would have an impact on the residents 

on Swan Lane and the High Street 

 

 This application would so hugely devalue Swan Gallery, and it's business viability 

 

 The Studio will be significantly disrupted by construction projects 

 

 The peace and tranquillity of my life which I have enjoyed here in The Studio for over 10 

years will unfortunately be changed significantly during construction and I fear will be 

changed for the long term if the new holiday let at the rear of the Chevrons site is given 

planning approval. 

 

3  APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1  The Planning, Design and Access Statement is concluded as follows:  

 

2.3 I would hope that once you have reviewed the existing and proposed drawings you will come to 

the conclusion that both main design aspects are a suitable conclusion, and that both could be 

considered as having a positive impact on the listed building. I would therefore like to ask that 

you look to approve this proposal. 

 

4  PLANNING POLICIES 

 

 OS4NEW High quality design 

 EH9 Historic environment 

 EH10 Conservation Areas 

 EH11 Listed Buildings 

 EH12 Traditional Buildings 

Page 17



Item No. 4, Page 16 of 36 

 

 EH13 Historic landscape character 

 NPPF 2019 

 DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

 The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5  PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

5.1 This application seeks listed building consent for internal and external alterations to erect a 

single storey extension to the main dwelling with changes to the internal layout. It also seeks 

listed building consent for  a replacement garden store to provide ancillary accommodation and 

the provision of additional vehicular access together with associated parking and landscaping 

works.  

 

5.2 The application site relates to Chevrons, Swan Lane in Burford. The site comprises a Grade II 

listed building located within the Burford Conservation Area and The Cotswolds Area of 

Outstanding Natural Beauty. 

 

5.3 Amended plans have been submitted following concerns raised by the Conservation and Design 

Officer. These amendments include alterations to the size, scale and design of the proposed 

extension to the main house so that it now reflects a clear, lightweight addition and changes to 

the new outbuilding/structure so that it now reflects a low level, traditionally pitched roof 

forming a structure that has the appearance of an open fronted cart shed. 

 

5.4 An application for planning permission has also been submitted for these works. 

 

5.5 The application is before Members of the Uplands Planning Sub-committee as the Parish Council 

has raised objections to the application contrary to your officer's recommendation. 

 

5.6 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application 

relate to the impact on the character and significance of the listed building including their setting. 

 

 Impact on Heritage Assets 

 

5.7 As the site is Grade II Listed, your officers are required to take account of section 66 of the 

Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended which states that in 

considering whether to grant listed building consent for any works the local planning authority 

shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building, its setting and any features 

of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. 

 

5.8 Paragraph 193 of the NPPF provides when considering the impact of a proposal on a designated 

heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset's conservation. Where a proposal 

results in less than substantial harm to a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed 

against the public benefits of the proposal (paragraph 196).  

 

5.9 The Conservation Officer has advised that the proposed works would not greatly affect any 

significant fabric. The internal alterations have been sensitively addressed in order to ensure the 

significance of this building is not affected by the proposed works.  

 

Page 18



Item No. 4, Page 17 of 36 

 

5.10 The proposed extension is considered to be an enhancement compared to the existing modern 

extension, and will still preserve the character of the listed building.  The new scheme will 

achieve a far less cluttered and much easier to understand extension and the design detail still 

allows a large portion of the stone gable to be visible so that it retains some of its legibility. 

 

5.11 Consequently, the proposals relating to the principal house are considered to be a public / 

heritage benefit.  This is because the works to refurbish this building into a habitable condition 

and replace and improve the existing unexceptional extensions with better designed 

contemporary versions will secure its continued viable use as a residence.  The works will also 

conserve and improve its significance and historic fabric by addressing alterations in a sensitive 

manner, using appropriate and compatible materials.  The proposal will result in a net gain in 

heritage terms preserving the historic fabric, character and appearance of this listed building.  

 

5.12 As for the outbuilding to the rear of the site, your officers are of the opinion that the current 

structure has no historical or architectural significance; rather its dilapidated appearance is 

considered to have a deleterious impact on the views and appearance of the heritage assets.  

The new structure is proposed to be a low level traditionally pitched roof forming a structure 

that has the appearance of an open fronted cart shed, with an oak beam over the eaves and oak 

post in the centre. Consequently, its replacement is considered to be an enhancement at this 

location by improving the street scene, appearance, views and setting of all heritage assets. 

Furthermore, the views out from the principal listed building will be enhanced by this proposal.  

Therefore it is considered that the proposed would result in no harm to the heritage assets; the 

current structure has no intrinsic significance, and its conversion and alteration is considered to 

have a positive impact on the overall appearance, character and setting of all of the heritage 

assets. 

 

5.13 With regard to the new opening in the boundary wall, the proposal seeks to create a new 

opening of historic fabric. It is considered that this alteration to the conservation area is 

considered to be of less than substantial harm, however, there have been at least three blocked 

openings identified in the existing wall. The proposed gate design / details are appropriate for 

the area and are in keeping with existing openings along Swan Lane. Given this, it is considered 

that the proposal overall does not significantly harm the character and appearance of the 

heritage assets and is therefore considered to be supportable.  

 

5.14 Overall it is considered that the proposed development would result in less than substantial 

harm to the listed buildings and this less than substantial harm would be outweighed by the 

public/heritage benefits of the proposal. The proposed development would respect the special 

qualities and historic context of the Conservation Area and would maintain the appearance of 

the heritage asset given the nature of what is proposed and its location. The proposed 

development would conform to policies EH10 and EH11 of the Local Plan. 

  

 Conclusion 

 

5.15 In light of the above, the application is considered to be acceptable and compliant with policies 

OS4, H6, EH9, EH10, EH11, EH12 and EH13 of the adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, 

the West Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016, and the relevant provisions of the NPPF. 

 

 

 

 

Page 19



Item No. 4, Page 18 of 36 

 

6  CONDITIONS 

 

1.   The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the 

date of this permission. 

 REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 

1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

2.   That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

3.   Before above ground building work commences, a schedule of materials (including samples) to 

be used in the elevations and roofs of the development shall be submitted to and approved in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be constructed in the approved 

materials. 

 REASON: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area.   

 

4.   Notwithstanding details contained in the application, detailed specifications and drawings of all 

external windows and doors to include elevations of each complete assembly at a minimum 1:20 

scale and sections of each component at a minimum 1:5 scale and including details of all 

materials, finishes and colours shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority before that architectural feature is commissioned/erected on site. The 

development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  

 REASON: To ensure the architectural detailing of the buildings reflects the established character 

of the area. 

 

5.   No demolitions, stripping out, removal of structural elements, replacement of original joinery or 

fittings and finishes shall be carried out except where shown and noted on the approved 

drawings. 

 REASON: To preserve internal features of the Listed Building.   

 

6.   All new works and works of making good shall be carried out in materials, and detailed, to 

match the adjoining original fabric except where shown otherwise on the approved drawings. 

 REASON: To preserve the architectural integrity of the Listed Building.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 20



Item No. 4, Page 19 of 36 

 

 
Application Number 20/02635/S73 

Site Address High Thatch 

Park Lane 

Long Hanborough 

Witney 

Oxfordshire 

OX29 8JU 

Date 17th February 2021 

Officer Sarah Hegerty 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Hanborough Parish Council 

Grid Reference 442660 E       214486 N 

Committee Date 1st March 2021 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

Application Details: 

Variation of condition 2 of planning permissions 19/01189/FUL and 19/02821/S73 to allow changes in the 

size and design of the approved double garage and alterations to the approved dwelling (Plot 1) 

comprising changes to internal layout, fenestration, entrance porch design and chimney detail with the 

Page 21



Item No. 4, Page 20 of 36 

 

provision of second floor accommodation including front and rear roof lights whilst retaining the site 

boundary as approved under permission 19/02821/S73 (Retrospective) (Amended) 

 

Applicant Details: 

Keble Homes Limited 

C/o Agent 

 

1  CONSULTATIONS 

 

1.1 Parish Council The applicant appears to be seeking a radical departure from design 

principles, relating to scale, previously agreed with WODC and 

supported by Hanborough Parish Council (HPC). Those principles 

were set out in a Design and Access Statement dated 20th July 2020. 

Paragraph 104.5 said: 

"The height of the proposed development has been carefully designed 

with consideration for the mass and bulk of the original building as 

well as the general character of the wider area. Most of the 

properties in the area are predominately 2 storey buildings. The 

overall massing of the building components follows the original 

concept of a farmstead. The principal living structure being the 

original house or barn which has been adjoined to secondary 

subservient structures. Following planning application (REF: 

18/03223/FUL) and pre-application consultation (REF: 

20/00057/PREAPP), the proposal has been significantly altered to 

reduce the scale and the massing of the new dwelling. The variations 

to the previous scheme can be summarised as follows: o The height 

of the dwelling has been reduced by nearly 4mo To further minimise 

the impact of the proposal the relative ground level has been reduced 

by approx. 1mo The southern wing has been removed o Two storey 

rear gable has been replaced with a single storey lightweight structure 

The mass and scale of the proposed application have been carefully 

considered to ensure the scheme does not appear dominant and 

overbearing. The alterations made to the scheme proposal assist in 

creating a replacement dwelling which is of a reasonable scale relative 

to the original building and reasonable in the context of the significant 

site or plot area."  

20/02635/S73 | Variation of condition 2 of planning permissions 

01189/FUL and 19/02821/S73 asks West Oxfordshire's Planning 

Authority: "to allow changes in the size and design of the approved 

double garage and alterations to the approved dwelling (Plot 1) 

comprising changes to internal layout, fenestration, entrance porch 

design and chimney detail with the provision of second floor 

accommodation including front rooflights and rear dormer windows 

whilst retaining the site boundary as approved under permission 

19/02821/S73. | High Thatch Park Lane Long Hanborough Witney 

Oxfordshire OX29 8JU."  

  

HPC considers the principles relating to scale and the setting of the 

site, originally set out in Paragraph 104.5 of the applicant's Design and 

Access Statement, to be important. We should wish to object to their 

Page 22



Item No. 4, Page 21 of 36 

 

abandonment, unless the planning officer involved is already resolved 

upon refusing this "variation." 

 

1.2 Parish Council The Parish Council appreciates that you have negotiated alterations 

to the fenestration of the property and removal of the dormer 

windows.  

However, these changes only go a little way towards addressing the 

applicant's departure from design principles, relating to scale, 

previously agreed with WODC and supported by Hanborough Parish 

Council (HPC).  

There is therefore no substantial reason  for us to amend our 

previous comments, albeit that we understand you might have 

exhausted your scope for further negotiation. 

 

2  REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1  No representations received 

 

3  APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 No Case submitted 

 

4  PLANNING POLICIES 

 

 OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

 OS4NEW High quality design 

 DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

 NPPF 2019 

 The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5  PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

 Background Information 

 

5.1 The application is before members today because the Parish Council object to the application.  

 

5.2 An extension of time was required to determine the application due to amended drawings 

requested by officers and for the application to be heard before members of planning sub- 

committee. 

 

5.3 The application seeks approval for the variation of condition 2 of planning permissions 

19/01189/FUL and 19/02821/S73 to allow changes in the size and design of the approved double 

garage and alterations to the approved dwelling (Plot 1) comprising changes to internal layout, 

fenestration, entrance porch design and chimney detail with the provision of second floor 

accommodation including front and rear roof lights whilst retaining the site boundary as 

approved under permission 19/02821/S73 (Retrospective) (Amended). The site is located on the 

edge of Long Hanborough. It is not within the AONB or Conservation Area.  

 

Page 23



Item No. 4, Page 22 of 36 

 

5.4 The principle of development has been established by previous permissions therefore taking into 

account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of interested 

parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are: 

 

 Siting Design and Form 

 Residential Amenity 

 

 

 Siting, Design and Form 

 

5.5 In terms of design, the proposed changes to the dwelling include amendments to fenestrations 

across the property, roof lights front and rear and removal of a small centralised dormer 

window on the front elevation. Following officers concerns with the initially submitted scheme 

the drawings were amended. The revised window and door style is considered to be in keeping 

with the overall style of the dwelling and also the streetscene within the wider area. The 

casements are traditional in form with modern French doors on the rear elevation at ground 

floor level. The roof lights and removal of the dormer window are considered acceptable 

changes. 

 

5.6 The amendments to the garage include a change in orientation, repositioning closer to the 

dwelling, addition of a staircase and door to allow for office space at first floor level. When 

assessing these changes officers have also considered a previous permission (19/01189/FUL) in 

which the approved garage was of a much larger scale and height with a room above. Whilst this 

was subsequently amended by 19/02821/S73 the proposed scheme as part of this application is 

the same style as previously approved and the addition of the door and staircase to allow access 

to the roof space is considered to be  acceptable . The garage remains secondary and 

subservient to the host dwelling and the overall size is smaller than previously approved which 

was for a 3 bay garage. Officers therefore considered the amendments acceptable in this regard. 

 

5.7 Officers note the Parish Council's objection to design specifically design principles relating to 

scale and setting.  Given however,  the previous permissions on site and that the amendments 

are, in Officer opinion,  in keeping with the vernacular for the area and district the proposal is 

considered acceptable.  

  

 Residential Amenities 

 

5.8 In terms of neighbouring amenity officers consider that due to the orientation and separation 

distance the roof lights on the dwelling and the door and staircase on the garage will not 

negatively impact on neighbouring amenity. Therefore this is considered acceptable in this 

regard.  

 

 Conclusion 

 

5.9 In light of this assessment, taking in consideration the design, neighbouring amenity and layout, 

this proposal is considered to be acceptable and would accord with policies OS2 and OS4 of the 

adopted Local Plan 2031, relevant sections from the NPPF and West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

2016. 

 

 

 

Page 24



Item No. 4, Page 23 of 36 

 

6  CONDITIONS 

 

1.   That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

2.   The garage accommodation hereby approved shall be used for the parking of vehicles ancillary 

to the residential occupation of the dwelling(s) and for no other purposes. 

 REASON:  In the interest of road safety and convenience and safeguarding the character and 

appearance of the area. 

 

3.   Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) Order, 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without 

modification) no extension (or alterations) otherwise approved by Classes A, B or C of Part 1 

of Schedule 2 to the Order, garage or outbuilding otherwise approved by Class E of Part 1 of 

Schedule 2 to the Order shall be erected or means of enclosure otherwise approved by Class A 

of Part 2 of Schedule 2 to the Order shall be erected or carried out without express planning 

permission first having been granted. 

 REASON: To avoid over-development of the new dwelling and to protect the residential 

amenities of the adjacent properties. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 25



Item No. 4, Page 24 of 36 

 

 
Application Number 20/02848/FUL 

Site Address Fardon House 

Frog Lane 

Milton Under Wychwood 

Chipping Norton 

Oxfordshire 

OX7 6JZ 

Date 17th February 2021 

Officer James Nelson 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Milton Under Wychwood Parish Council 

Grid Reference 426765 E       217892 N 

Committee Date 1st March 2021 

 

Location Map 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

Application Details: 

Change of use of paddock land to extend domestic garden. 

 

Applicant Details: 

Mr And Mrs Paul And Deborah Horner 

Fardon House, Frog Lane, Milton Under Wychwood, Oxfordshire,  OX7 6JZ 

Page 26



Item No. 4, Page 25 of 36 

 

1  CONSULTATIONS 

 

1.1 Parish Council Following Milton under Wychwood Parish council meeting. Result is 

OBJECTION. Although the PC are concerned about biodiversity, the 

PC is also concerned about the encroachment on 'uncultivated land'. 

This was our reason for objecting to the original proposal. Whereas 

the revised proposals go some way to maintaining the biodiversity 

along the stream's banks it does not address the problem of 

encroachment. The original OBJECTION by Milton under Wychwood 

PC still stands 

 

1.2 Parish Council Mrs J Miller Following Milton under Wychwood Parish council 

meeting. Result is OBJECTION 

Mrs J Miller Following Milton under Wychwood Parish Council 

meeting, result is OBJECTION - NOT APPROVED 

 

1.3 Environment Agency Thank you for re-consulting us on the above application on 25 

November 2020 following the submission of additional details. 

 

We have reviewed the letter from the applicant entitled - request for 

exemption from submitting a full Flood Risk Assessment. 

 

The applicant has confirmed that the land subject to this planning 

application will not be altered in any way - this includes no raising of 

ground levels and no buildings or hardstanding put in place. The letter 

also indicates that proposed conditions will remove 

permitted development rights from this land. While the applicant may 

not have experienced any significant flooding on the land to 

date, this does not mean that more extensive flooding of the site will 

not happen. One of the purposes of a Flood Risk Assessment is to 

determine the expected level and extent of possible flooding so the 

applicant can be informed and more aware of the risks and how to 

respond to them. Our flood map for planning only gives an indication 

of the possible risk, a site specific Flood Risk Assessment would 

provide more detailed analysis. Based on the applicant's statement 

that no land raising will occur and no buildings or hard standing will 

be put in place, we are satisfied that a full flood risk assessment is not 

necessary in this case. Subject to the conditions below, we therefore 

withdraw our previous objection dated 09 November 2020.  

 

As you are aware, the discharge and enforcement of planning 

conditions rests with your authority. You must therefore be satisfied 

that the proposed conditions meet the requirements of the 6 tests in 

paragraph 55 of the National  Planning Policy Framework. Please 

notify us immediately if you are unable to apply our suggested 

conditions, to allow further consideration and advice.  

 

Condition 1 There shall be no raising of existing ground levels on site. 

Existing ground levels shall be retained and maintained throughout 

the lifetime of the development.  

Page 27



Item No. 4, Page 26 of 36 

 

 

Reason: To prevent flooding to the proposed development and future  

occupants and to prevent flooding elsewhere.  

 

Condition 2 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and 

Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 

2015 or any order revoking and re-enacting that order with or 

without modification, no structure shall be erected or hardstanding 

put in place on the site as shown on the approved location plan. 

 

Reason: To prevent flooding to the proposed development and future 

occupants and to prevent flooding elsewhere. Closing comments 

Should you require any additional information, or wish to discuss 

these matters further, please do not hesitate to contact me on the 

number below. 

 

1.4 Biodiversity Officer The main issue of the proposal is that there would be no control of 

the land once it becomes domestic garden. Even if a biodiversity 

management plan was prepared, there is no guarantee that the future 

owners of the land will carry out the same safeguarding measures. 

Therefore by creating a buffer along the water course and the 

associated hedgerow, we can ensure that domestic paraphernalia, and 

other issues such as lighting, are avoided along the riparian zone. This 

would avoid impacting on the habitats present and the associated 

protected and priority species that use the water course and 

hedgerow.  

 

Ideally, there should be a buffer of 10 metres along the southern 

boundary. However, if this is not possible then I will accept a buffer of 

5 metres. The area within this buffer would be retained outside of 

domestic use and can become a 'wildlife zone'. Once the buffer along 

the southern boundary has been agreed with the applicant, I will then 

accept the submission of a biodiversity management plan associated 

with this area. The biodiversity management plan would only be an 

additional measure which the applicant can prepare if they wish.  

 

2  REPRESENATIONS 

 

2.1  Representation in opposition to the proposal have been received by three parties. One 

representation in support of the application has also been received. The objction comments are 

raised on the following grounds: 

 

 Landscape Character  

 Pattern of development 

 Biodiversity Impacts 

 Neighbourly Amenity  

 

3  APPLICANTS CASE  

 

3.1  No Design and Access Statement has been submitted as part of this application. 

Page 28



Item No. 4, Page 27 of 36 

 

4  PLANNING POLICIES 

 

 OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

 OS4NEW High quality design 

 EH1 Cotswolds AONB 

 EH2 Landscape character 

 EH3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

 EH7 Flood risk 

 EH13 Historic landscape character 

 DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

 DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

 The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5  BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

  

5.1  This application follows an enforcement investigation and seeks consent to incorporate a parcel 

of agricultural land adjacent to Fardon House, Frog Lane, Milton-under-Wychwood into 

domestic garden. The proposed amounts to a material change in the use of the land.  

 

5.2  The application site lies within the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and is 

brought before members of the Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee following objection from 

the Milton-under-Wychwood Parish Council. 

 

5.3  The site is bordered to the south east by a brook with agricultural land beyond and to the south 

west by open countryside. To the north is the built up area of Milton-under-Wychwood. A large 

section of the site sits within Flood Risk Zone 2. The application has been amended so that the 

proposed area of garden land is set back from the brook by five meters.         

 

5.4  Relevant Planning History:  

 

 17/00103/CLE- 'Certificate of lawfulness (To allow land to continue as domestic)' 

 17/01304/HHD- 'Construction of garden shed (retrospective) and greenhouse.' 

 18/02250/FUL - 'Change of use from paddock to domestic and creation of new access and 

drive (Amended plans)' 

 

5.5  Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application 

are: 

 

 Principle; 

 Visual Amenity;  

 Residential Amenity;  

 Biodiversity; and  

 Flood Risk 

 

 Principle 

 

5.6  The application site lies adjacent to the built up area of Milton-under-Wychwood, identified as a 

village in the West Oxfordshire Local Plan. The principle of extending the residential garden that 

Page 29



Item No. 4, Page 28 of 36 

 

respects the village character and local distinctiveness is considered acceptable subject to careful 

consideration against local and national policy.  

 

 Visual Amenity 

 

5.7  In reviewing the application, Officers must consider the visual impact of the development on its 

immediate setting and the wider AONB in accordance with Paragraph 172 of the NPPF which 

advises that great weight should be given to conserving and enhancing the landscape and scenic 

beauty of the AONB. The site occupies an edge of village location and can be seen when passing 

the site on Frog Lane. The land is clearly delineated from the existing garden of Fardon House 

by post and rail fencing and is maintained as a grassed paddock with a mix of native tree planting.  

 

5.8  The application does not seek to alter the present boundary treatments between the existing 

garden and the paddock and no buildings are proposed within the application site. To ensure 

that no buildings are constructed on the land, Officers consider it expedient to impose a 

condition removing any permitted development rights for buildings to be erected in future. In 

addition, a condition is recommended by Officers to remove permitted development rights in 

relation to boundary treatments to ensure that in terms of visual amenity the change of use will 

have minimal impact upon its immediate surroundings. Fencing is proposed along the south 

eastern boundary of the site. This represents the only operational development included in the 

application. In order to retain an agricultural character, Officers have recommended that a 

condition be imposed to ensure that the fence is of post and rail form and that no garden 

paraphernalia is sited on the land. Given the above, Officers consider that the land will retain its 

current visual appearance and as a result, Officers consider that the proposed change of use will 

result in minimal impact in terms of visual amenity and therefore respects its immediate setting 

and conserves the wider landscape character. 

 

 Residential Amenity 

 

5.9  The site borders one property, Stoneham House, to the north east. Objection has been raised 

on the grounds that the use and maintenance of the area will result in an unacceptable level of 

noise disruption, largely as a result of mowing the paddock.  

 

5.10  Your Officers consider that residential gardens are often surrounded by other residential 

properties where noise resulting from mowing apparatus and residential use of gardens is 

common place. The frequency that the grassed area is mown is not a matter that may be 

addressed through planning conditions as it would set an unreasonable precedent for residential 

gardens in the locality. Officers also consider that agricultural use of the site would not preclude 

the use of machinery such as mowing equipment and therefore the proposed material change in 

the use of the land would not necessarily lead to increased noise impacts upon neighbouring 

properties. As a result, your Officers consider that the application is acceptable on the grounds 

of residential amenity.      

 

 Biodiversity 

 

5.11  Concerns were raised by the Council's Biodiversity Officer that the initial proposal could result 

in the loss of a wildlife corridor along the watercourse at the south of the site. As a result, the 

application has been amended to remove land within five meters of the watercourse from the 

site. This will be reinforced by a post and rail fence and will secure the retention of the wildlife 

corridor. The application is therefore considered acceptable on biodiversity grounds.      

Page 30



Item No. 4, Page 29 of 36 

 

  

 Flood Risk 

 

5.12  The application has not been accompanied by a Flood Risk Assessment as is mandatory within 

Flood Risk Zone 2. The applicants have secured a waiver from the Environment Agency to 

confirm that no Flood Risk Assessment is required in this case. This is because no buildings or 

hardstanding will be placed on the land with no alteration to land levels proposed. As a result, 

the proposal will have no impact upon flood risk in the area and the objection of the 

Environment Agency has been rescinded. The application is therefore considered acceptable in 

terms of flood risk.    

 

 Conclusion 

 

5.13  Given the above assessment, the proposed material change of use is recommended for approval 

as your Officers consider it complies with West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 Polices OS2; OS4; 

EH1; EH2; EH3; EH7 and EH13, relevant paragraphs of the NPPF 2019.   

 

6  CONDITIONS 

 

1.   That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

2.   The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the 

date of this permission. 

 REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 

1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

3.   Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with 

or without modification), no buildings, hardstandings, structures or means of enclosure shall be 

erected on the land other than as expressly authorised by this permission.  

 REASON: Control is needed in order to safeguard the character and appearance of the area. 

 

4.   That within 3 months of the date of this consent, a post and rail fence, not exceeding 1 meter in 

height, shall be erected and retained along the southern boundary of the site. 

 REASON: To ensure a natural buffer is retained to protect biodiversity along the watercourse 

to the south of the site. 

 

5.   That no garden paraphanalia be placed on the land. 

 REASON: Control is needed in order to safeguard the character and appearance of the area. 

 

6.   That there shall be no raising of existing ground levels on site, existing ground levels shall be 

retained and maintained throughout the lifetime of the development.  

 Reason: To prevent flooding to the proposed development and future occupants and to prevent 

flooding elsewhere. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 31



Item No. 4, Page 30 of 36 

 

 
Application Number 20/03444/S73 

Site Address 5 - 12 Chipping Norton Road 

Chadlington 

Chipping Norton 

Oxfordshire 

OX7 3PE 

Date 17th February 2021 

Officer Joan Desmond 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Chadlington Parish Council 

Grid Reference 431623 E       224293 N 

Committee Date 1st March 2021 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

Application Details: 

Variation of condition 7 of 20/01457/FUL to widen the goods that can be retailed on site to within 30 

mile radius. 

 

Applicant Details: 

C/O Agent 

Page 32



Item No. 4, Page 31 of 36 

 

1  CONSULTATIONS 

 

1.1 Parish Council The current Notice of Decision for planning application 

20/01457/FUL restricts the goods retailed from the farm shop to 

those produced solely within the West Oxfordshire District 

boundaries, the area of which is 275.8 square miles. This was granted 

on the basis that, "the nature of the goods sold being ancillary and 

related to the farming operations in the locality", as stated in 

Condition 7 of the Notice of Decision. This Variation of condition 7 

seeks to extend the area to within a 30 mile radius of the farm shop, 

which wouldcover an area of 2828 square miles, much of which could 

not be considered as being "in the locality". 

 

This large increase in area, within which goods can be sourced and 

sold, is unreasonable and is likely to result in the undermining of the 

viability of the existing shops in the village, namely Chadlington 

Quality Foods, Chadlington Butchers and The Café De La Post. 

We are aware of objections made on line, emailed to the Clerk and 

made verbally to Councillors and as a Parish Council our concern 

must be to support the existing shops in the village. These facilities 

are essential to many, particularly those who rely on being able to 

walk to them. 

 

The Farm Shop is not a Market Co-operative, as the JPPC document 

draws comparison with to justify a 30 mile radius, it is a permanent 

shop that will be in competition with the local shops of the village. 

For these reasons the Parish Council objects to the proposed 

variation of Condition 7 of 20/01457/FUL. 

 

2  REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 12 letters have been received objecting to the application on the following grounds: 

 

 None compliance with Condition 7.  This latest application repeats, with minor 

amendments, the wording of Condition 7 increasing the area from which produce can be 

obtained. 

 The approval that has been flouted is contrary to para 6.43 in the West Oxfordshire Local 

Plan 2031: "Proposals for farm shops will be assessed to ensure that they are proposed to 

be a genuine retail outlet of agricultural produce from the local area and in terms of their 

impact on existing village or town centre shops serving the local community. Conditions will 

be applied limiting the type of goods sold and proportion of externally sourced goods." 

 Seeks to increase the range of goods sold, thereby further undermining 'Chadlington Quality 

Foods', the community shop which serves the village and other shops in the village which 

will threaten their viability   

 Threat to the existence of existing shops in Chadlington at a time when their well being is 

under many pressures. 

 Granting permission would encourage them to further flout the authority of WODC. 

 There is no justification to vary the existing condition nor is it in the interests of the local 

community. 

Page 33



Item No. 4, Page 32 of 36 

 

 Not all the products are produced or 'made in the UK' which makes them unsustainable and 

contributes more to climate change and weakens environmental protection along with 

increasing carbon footprint. 

 

3  APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1  The supporting letter states: 

 

3.2 Currently the decision purports to restrict other goods to those sourced from within West 

Oxfordshire District boundaries. We do not challenge the intent of the condition to limit the 

goods sold from the premises to a limited area, but do submit that it may be met in a different 

way. The application site is in the north western corner of the District - this means that at its 

closest point the District boundary is only 3.5 miles away to the east and such there may be a 

producer within a very short distance of the site who would be precluded from selling goods 

they produce to the premises. In contrast the furthest point is over 16 miles away to the south. 

 

3.3 There are a number of alternatives that are employed elsewhere, however we consider a 

reasonable alternative would be to employ a condition that has a similar effect to that used by 

the Thames Valley Farmers Market Co-operative. The Co-operative have markets in Witney, 

Woodstock, Charlbury and Chipping Norton and thus serve the local community of this part of 

the uplands area of West Oxfordshire in a very similar fashion to the farm shop. The Co-

operative have strict guidelines as to who can sell produce at their markets based. Their 

definition of a local producer is based on a radius of 30 miles from the market location. We 

propose to substitute that for the District boundary in varying this condition. 

 

3.4 National and Local Planning policies recognise the importance of allowing traditional land-based 

businesses to develop and diversify and this proposal relates to one such endeavour (see 

paragaprh 83 of the NPPF and Policy . It is also relevant to note that the same paragraph of the 

NPPF also promotes sustainable rural tourism and the site also fulfils that role - with many 

people visiting the area to see the shop and linking that visit in with trips to other local 

attractions. These are all elements that support the economy of West Oxfordshire as a whole 

and support facilities which are essential to the local community. 

 

4  PLANNING POLICIES 

 

 OS1NEW Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

 OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

 OS3NEW Prudent use of natural resources 

 OS4NEW High quality design 

 E2NEW Supporting the rural economy 

 E2NEW Supporting the rural economy 

 T1NEW Sustainable transport 

 T3NEW Public transport, walking and cycling 

 T4NEW Parking provision 

 EH1 Cotswolds AONB 

 EH3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

 BC1NEW Burford-Charlbury sub-area 

 NPPF 2019 

 The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

Page 34



Item No. 4, Page 33 of 36 

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

5.1 This application seeks to vary condition 7 attached to 20/01457/FUL which was granted in 

October 2020 for the erection of a lambing shed and farm shop, including car parking and 

associated access (part retrospective) with potential for occasional filming. 

 

 Condition 7 states: 

 The goods retailed from the farm shop hereby approved shall be solely limited to: i) goods and produce 

grown, reared or produced on the holding ii) goods and produce from local producers including meat, 

vegetables, flowers, bread and cakes, eggs, dairy products, cheese, yoghurts and other such products as 

may be first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and iii) other farm/woodland based 

products from local producers and for no other purposes falling within the Class A1 of the Town and 

Country Planning (Use Classes) Order or any equivalent provision in a re-enactment of the order. 

 

 REASON: The use is given permission as an exception to the normal policies of restraint upon retailing in 

an open countryside location solely on the basis that the nature of the goods sold being ancillary and 

related to the farming operations in the locality. 

 NB. For the purposes of this condition, the definition of 'local producer' is a producer based solely within 

West Oxfordshire District boundaries. 

 

 In essence this application seeks to vary the condition to widen the goods that can be retailed 

on site to within a 30 mile radius.  The suggested re-wording of Condition 7 proposed is as 

follows: 

 

 The goods retailed shall be limited to:  

 i)  goods and produce grown, reared or produced on the holding;  

 ii)  goods and produce from producers based within a 30 mile radius of the holding, including 

 meat, vegetables, fruit, flowers, bread and cakes, eggs, dairy products, or other such products as 

 may be first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority; and  

 iii)  other farm/woodland based products from producers within a 30 mile radius of the holding. 

 

5.2 The site comprises part of an open agricultural field measuring 0.27ha in area and comprises 

part of Diddly Squat Farm.  Diddly Squat Farm comprises approximately 350 ha of agricultural 

land to the north west of Chadlington. 

 

5.3 The site lies within the Cotswolds AONB.  Chipping Norton Road is located to the north-east 

of the site and provides vehicular access into the field via an existing gated entrance. The 

Chipping Norton Camping and Caravanning Club site is located to the north-west with the 

A361 Buford Road beyond that, while the surrounding land comprises agricultural fields that fall 

within the applicant's ownership.  

 

5.4 The application is to be heard before the Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee as the Parish 

Council has objected to the application.  Cllr Owen has also requested that the application is 

reported to Committee for policy reasons concerning the viability and vitality of the local village 

shop and adjoining butchers. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 35



Item No. 4, Page 34 of 36 

 

 Planning Background 

 

5.5 Diddly Squat Farm has been a working farm for the past 10 years, predominantly growing wheat, 

oilseed rape and barley for wholesale via grain merchants to domestic mills, feed processors, oil 

crushes as well as export markets.   

 

5.6 Planning permission was originally granted for the lambing shed and farm shop in November 

2019 (Ref: 19/02110/FUL) and revised applications were permitted in February 2020 

(19/03516/FUL) and November 2020 (20/01457/FUL).   

 

5.7 Taking into account the planning history of the site, other material considerations and the 

presentations of interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key consideration of 

this application is whether the variation of Condition 7 as proposed would be harmful to the 

vitality and viability of nearby retail services. 

 

 Impact on the vitality and viability of nearby retail services 

 

5.8 The principal changes to Condition 7 relate to the omission in part iii) of reference to Class A1 

use on the basis that given the change to Use Classes which came into effect in September 2020 

this reference is no longer needed.  The amendments which came into force in September 2020, 

introduced a new Use Class (F2 Local Community) which comprises a new category dedicated 

to protecting local community uses.  Use Class F2 (a) includes shops servicing the essential 

needs of local communities and is defined as: 

 

 F2(a) Shops (mostly) selling essential goods, including food, where the shop's premises do not exceed 

280 square metres and there is no other such facility within 1000 metres. 

 

5.9 The case being made is that this farm shop falls into this new Use Class which already limits the 

goods that can be sold. 

 

5.10 Condition 7 presently makes reference to 'local producers' and defines this as being 'a producer 

based solely within West Oxfordshire District boundaries.'  The case being made by the 

applicant is that the wording of the condition is unclear and it is uncertain what may be offered 

for sale at the premises.  In addition it is argued that a different geographical limitation would be 

more reasonable given the sites location close to the District boundary to the east which would 

enable producers a short distance away, but outside the district, to sell goods they produce to 

the farm shop.  Whilst the point relating to uncertainty in the present wording of the condition 

is disputed, there is considered to be merit in the argument that a varied condition to limit 

goods sold from the premises to a limited area could be met in a different way.  

  

5.11 In terms of defining an appropriate geographical area, the applicant is suggesting a condition that 

would have a similar effect to that used by the Thames Valley Farmers Market Co-operative 

which has markets in the District and thus serve the local community in a similar fashion to the 

farm shop.  The Co-operative have strict guidelines as to who can sell produce at their markets 

and in order to cut down 'food miles', most of the food and drink sold at Thames Valley 

Farmers' Markets is produced within a 30 mile radius of the market.  As such the applicant is 

proposing that a similar geographical restriction is applied in this case which would limit 

producers based within a 30 mile radius of the holding.  Whilst a change to the geographical 

area is considered to be reasonable it is Officer opinion that the 30 mile radius should apply to 

Page 36



Item No. 4, Page 35 of 36 

 

the farm shop and not the holding.  This would provide a clear radius and would be more 

precise and enforceable.    

 

5.12 The Parish Council and local residents have objected to the application, principally on the 

grounds that the variation of the condition to extend the area to within a 30 mile radius, which 

would cover an area of 2828 square miles, much of which could not be considered as being "in 

the locality"; This large increase in area, would be unreasonable and is likely to result in the 

undermining of the viability of the existing shops in the village, namely Chadlington Quality 

Foods, Chadlington Butchers and The Café De La Post.  Whilst these concerns are noted, Policy 

E2 of the adopted Local plan supports farm diversification schemes such as farm shops.  In the 

supporting justification for the policy it states that proposals for farm shops will be assessed to 

ensure that they are proposed to be a genuine retail outlet of agricultural produce from the 

local area and in terms of their impact on existing village or town centre shops serving the local 

community. Conditions will be applied limiting the type of goods sold and proportion of 

externally sourced goods.  

 

5.13 In this case, Condition 7 was imposed accordingly to limit the range of goods that can be sold 

from the farm shop.  This application to vary the condition has been submitted following 

enforcement investigations relating to a breach of the condition.  In seeking to extend the 

geographical area for the sale of produce the application proposes a similar limitation as 

imposed on the local farm markets in the district.  Such an approach is not considered to be 

unreasonable in this case and the limitation on the range of produce that can be sold should 

ensure that the viability and vitality of the existing shops in Chadlington is not undermined. 

 

 Conclusion 

 

5.14 In conclusion, the variation of Condition 7 is considered to be acceptable subject to the 30 mile 

radius being from the farm shop and not the holding as suggested in the varied Condition 7 

detailed below. 

 

6  CONDITIONS 

 

1.   That the development be carried out in accordance with the plans approved under planning 

application 20/01457/FUL. 

 REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

2.   The roof of the new farm shop shall be reclad with the approved Marley Eternit Rivendale Slate 

(Blue Black colour) within 2 months of the date of this permission. 

 REASON: To protect the visual amenities of the area. 

 

3.   The car parking areas shown on the approved plans shall be retained and used for no other 

purpose. 

 REASON: To ensure that adequate car parking facilities are provided in the interests of road 

safety 

 

4.   Within 2 months of the date of this permission, the means of access shall be constructed in 

accordance with the approved details. 

 REASON: To ensure a safe and adequate access. 

 

Page 37



Item No. 4, Page 36 of 36 

 

5.   Within 2 months of the date of this permission, the approved landscaping details shall be 

implemented as approved and thereafter be maintained in accordance with the approved 

scheme. In the event of any of hedging plants dying or being seriously damaged or destroyed 

within 5 years of the completion of the development, a new hedging plant of equivalent number 

and species, shall be planted as a replacement and thereafter properly maintained. 

 REASON: To ensure the safeguarding of the character and landscape of the area during and post 

development. 

 

6.   Within 2 months of the date of this permission, the approved drainage details shall be installed. 

 REASON: To ensure the proper provision for surface water drainage and/or to ensure flooding 

is not exacerbated in the locality (National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice 

Guidance). 

 

7.   The goods retailed from the farm shop shall be solely limited to: i) goods and produce grown, 

reared or produced on the holding ii) goods and produce from producers based within a 30 

mile radius of the farm shop, including meat, vegetables, fruit, flowers, bread and cakes, eggs, 

dairy products, or other such products as may be first agreed in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority; and iii) other farm/woodland based products from producers within a 30 mile radius 

of the farm shop. 

 REASON: The use is given permission as an exception to the normal policies of restraint upon 

retailing in an open countryside location solely on the basis that the nature of the goods sold 

being ancillary and related to the farming operations in the locality. 

 

8.   The temporary use of the site for commercial film-making shall be for a period not exceeding 9 

months in any 27 month period. 

 REASON: The use is only justified by the potential need for temporary film-making 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 38



Item No. 5, Page 1 of 12 

 

 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Name and date of 

Committee 

Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee: 

Monday 1 March 2021 

Report Number Agenda Item No. 5 

Subject Progress on Enforcement Cases 

Wards affected As specified in Annex A 

Accountable officer Phil Shaw, Business Manager, Development Management  

Email: phil.shaw@publicagroup.uk  

Author Kim Smith, Principal Planner (Enforcement)  

Tel: 01993 861676 Email: kim.smith@westoxon.gov.uk  

Summary/Purpose To inform the Sub-Committee of the current situation and progress in 

respect of enforcement investigations 

Annex Annex A – Schedule of cases (Sections A to C) 

Recommendation That the progress and nature of the outstanding enforcement investigations 

detailed in Sections A – C of Annex A be noted.  

Corporate priorities  1.1. N/A 

Key Decision 1.2. N/A 

Exempt 1.3. No 

  

Page 39

Agenda Item 5

mailto:phil.shaw@publicagroup.uk
mailto:kim.smith@westoxon.gov.uk


Item No. 5, Page 2 of 12 

1. BACKGROUND AND MAIN POINTS 

1.1. Section A of Annex A contains cases where the requirements of a formal notice 

have not been met within the compliance period (page 3). 

1.2. Section B contains cases where formal action has been taken but the compliance 

period has yet to expire (page 5). 

1.3. Section C contains cases which are high priority but where the expediency of 

enforcement action has yet to be considered (page 6). 

1.4. The Sub-Committee should be aware that the cases included in this update 

constitute only a small number of the overall enforcement caseload across the 

District, which at the time of writing consists of 271 live cases. The high priority 

cases for both Uplands and Lowlands constitute approximately 20% of the total 

caseload. 

2. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

2.1. There are no financial implications resulting from this report.   

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

3.1. Not applicable, as the report is for information.  

4. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

4.1. None

Page 40



Item No. 5, Page 3 of 12 

Annex A 

SECTION A – PROGRESS ON CASES WHERE THE REQUIREMENTS OF A FORMAL  

NOTICE HAVE NOT BEEN MET WITHIN THE COMPLIANCE PERIOD 

The cases listed in the following section are those where a notice has been served and the requirements have not been met within the compliance 

period or there has been an unauthorised display of advertisements.  This means that an offence is likely to have been committed and that the Council 

need to consider the next steps to secure compliance.  In some cases this will entail the initiation of legal proceedings to bring about a prosecution.  

Site Address 

and Case No. 

Unauthorised 

Development 

Notes Update/Action to be taken 

Unicorn Public 

House, Great 

Rollright 

 

Listed Building 

allowed to fall 

into a state of 

disrepair 

The pub has been closed for many 

years and the subject of on-going 

complaint regarding its 

appearance/state of repair.  

 

Following the report to Cabinet in 

November 2018 where Officers 

recommended that if the building 

is to be secured it will be 

necessary to enact the resolution 

to compulsorily purchase it and 

make budgetary provision for such 

action a full report was put to 

Council on 23 January 2019 and 

agreed. 

Since then: 

Building Control has continued 

inspections to review safety of the 

structure. 

Officers have met specialist 

external consultants to clarify CPO 

process/next steps 

Estates have commenced 

discussions with the owner to 

ascertain whether a negotiated 

At its meeting on 16th December 2020 Cabinet approved a report on a legal 

agreement to a moratorium period in the potential CPO process subject to the owner 

delivering against set milestones on repairs and planning applications etc.  Estates 

Officers are working on completion of the agreement and final terms are delegated to 

the Chief Executive in consultation with relevant Members. 

 

Following review with Building Control the owners of the property are due to 

commence repair works to the rear of the property.  Details are being agreed with 

Conservation Officers.  

 

Supporting scaffold across the rear of the building was installed just before Christmas 

which is providing support to the rear wall and internal corner area. This will also 

provide a safe working platform to carry out repairs to the rear wall.  

 

P
age 41



Item No. 5, Page 4 of 12 

Site Address 

and Case No. 

Unauthorised 

Development 

Notes Update/Action to be taken 

purchase can be secured without 

the need for formal CPO action. 

 

The Bull Inn, 

Sheep Street, 

Charlbury 

Unauthorised 

external flue and 

extraction 

system. 

Applications were refused for the 

same extraction flue at a different 

location on the building (Ref nos. 

17/00790/FUL and 17/00791/LBC).  

In light of the refused applications 

and the fact that the existing 

system that is in situ was 

considered to adversely impact on 

both the architectural character 

and appearance of the listed 

building and the Conservation 

Area, your Officers prepared an 

enforcement report with a 

recommendation to take formal 

enforcement action. Members 

resolved to approve such action 

and an Enforcement Notice was 

issued requiring removal of the 

unauthorised flue. 

The Enforcement Notice was the subject of an appeal which was dismissed on 30 

October 2018 and the enforcement notice upheld.  

 

Listed Building Consent and Planning Permission have subsequently  been approved 

for an alternative extraction unit and flue. 

 

However, Covid and lockdown restrictions have delayed the implementation of 

the approved alternative scheme. 

Manor Farm, 

Great Rollright 

Unauthorised 

storage of 3 

caravans on land 

The landowner was advised that 

the storage of caravans on the land 

is a breach of planning control and 

that it was considered expedient in 

this case to proceed to formal 

Planning enforcement action. 

An Enforcement notice was issued requiring cessation of the unauthorised storage 

use and removal of the 3 caravans. It was not the subject of an appeal and the date 

for compliance has now expired. 

2 caravans have been removed from the land at the time of writing and it is 

anticipated that as a result of ongoing negotiation the third caravan will be 

removed. 

Manor Farm, 

Great Rollright 

Alleged non -

compliance with 

an agricultural tie 

on the 

The house has been let as a 

holiday let in breach of condition 5 

of planning permission 

04/1203/P/RM which restricts 

In the absence of the submission of either a planning application or lawful 

development certificate application in an attempt to seek to regularise the breach 

an Enforcement Notice (Breach of Condition) was issued which was the subject of 

an appeal to the Planning Inspectorate. 

P
age 42



Item No. 5, Page 5 of 12 

Site Address 

and Case No. 

Unauthorised 

Development 

Notes Update/Action to be taken 

farmhouse. occupancy of the dwelling to a 

person/persons solely or mainly 

working in agriculture/forestry. 

The owner has claimed that 

through time the holiday let use is 

lawful. Despite this claim no lawful 

development certificate has been 

submitted to seek to evidence the 

alleged lawful use 

Officers have been advised that the appeal has subsequently been withdrawn and as 

such the enforcement notice has now come into effect. 

However, Officers understand that a planning application is to be submitted in an 

attempt to regularise the breach. 

 

 

SECTION B – PROGRESS ON ENFORCEMENT INVESTIGATIONS WHERE FORMAL ACTION HAS BEEN TAKEN. 

The cases listed in Section B are ones where a notice has been served but the compliance date has not yet passed. 

Site Address 

and Case No. 

Unauthorised 

Development 

Notes Update/Action to be taken 

Lower Farm, 

Witney Lane, 

Leafield 

Unauthorised 

change of use of 

land to garden 

and construction 

of a hard 

surfaced tennis 

court.  

Planning permission for the alleged 

unauthorised development was 

refused and dismissed at appeal 

under 15/01884/FUL 

Two Enforcement Notices have been served. One for a change of use of land and 

one for creation of a hard surfaced tennis court. Both notices have been appealed  

 

  

P
age 43



Item No. 5, Page 6 of 12 

SECTION C – PROGRESS ON OTHER ENFORCEMENT INVESTIGATIONS IDENTIFIED AS BEING HIGH PRIORITY 

Site Address 

and Case No. 

Unauthorised 

Development 

Notes Update/Action to be taken 

The Heyes, 

Churchill 

Unauthorised 

Storage and 

processing of 

logs 

The Heyes, 

Churchill 

As reported to Members in the 

last update report the landowner 

is claiming that the use under 

investigation has been going on for 

in excess of 10 years and is 

therefore lawful. Officers have 

advised that in order to evidence 

this claim a CLEUD application 

needs to be submitted for 

consideration. No such application 

has been received however a 

planning application for the use has 

been submitted in an attempt to 

seek to regularise the use. 

The planning application was subsequently withdrawn. 

A recent site visit has confirmed that the use of the land for the storage and 

processing of logs has ceased as the site has largely been cleared. 

CLOSE 

The Beeches, 

Old London 

Road, Chipping 

Norton 

Car park 

extension.  

Additional 

caravans located 

on the periphery 

of the site. 

Officers have noted that a number 

of plots on the periphery of the 

site have additional caravans on 

them. Further that there is a car 

park extension to the south east of 

the site. Whilst Officers do not 

consider the car park extension to 

be harmful, the peripheral 

expansion of the site does result in 

the site appearing more visually 

prominent within the AONB. 

As there are likely to be a number of issues relating to the alleged breaches of 

planning control on the land that are not planning matters, Officers are seeking to 

liaise with other relevant Services within the Council and possibly other agencies in 

order to discuss the best way to approach the investigation.  

Officers have recently revisited the site in order to re-assess any harms resulting 

from the breaches that have been identified and have concluded that in terms of 

the peripheral expansion that has taken place on some of the plots that further 

action is required. 

Progress on the alleged breaches on this site has been protracted due to the 

complexity of the issues and the change in working practice/site visit protocols as a 

result of Covid 19 and associated lockdowns.   

 

 

26 High Street, 

Ascott under 

Wychwood 

Unauthorised 

change of use of 

land from 

Planning application 16/03240/FUL 

was submitted in an attempt to 

regularise the breach. It was 

In light of the refusal of planning permission and in the absence of an appeal your 

officers anticipated that if the unauthorised change of use was not resolved 

voluntarily that it would be expedient to issue a Planning Enforcement Notice in 

P
age 44



Item No. 5, Page 7 of 12 

Site Address 

and Case No. 

Unauthorised 

Development 

Notes Update/Action to be taken 

agricultural to 

garden. 

refused on the grounds that the 

extension of the garden curtilage 

adversely intrudes into and 

urbanises the open countryside 

thus failing to conserve and 

enhance the Cotswolds AONB. 

respect of the breach. 

It has however been difficult to date to confirm whether or not the contravener 

has ceased using the land as garden because of the ability to move goal posts, 

trampolines etc very easily on to and off of the land.  

In light of the above periodic monitoring of the site has been undertaken and a 

recent site visit has identified that the land in question appears to be being used as 

a garden. Also it has been noted that the adjoining property appears to have 

extended its garden.  

The extended garden uses do not appear to result in ‘material’ harm to the rural 

character and appearance of the area. However, to ensure that ‘permitted 

development’ rights are not established which could result in visually intrusive 

outbuildings your officers are of the opinion that retrospective applications need to 

be sought in order to impose conditions restricting those rights. 

Burford House 

99 High Street 

Alterations to 

listed building 

Unauthorised works have been 

undertaken to a Grade II listed 

building 

Applications for part retrospective works have been approved under 

19/01293/FUL and 19/01294/LBC. 

A recent site visit has confirmed that the above noted permissions do not appear 

to have been implemented in order to address the breach of planning control. 

Your Officers have contacted the manager of the premises to ascertain when the 

works will be carried out. 

20 Taynton Listed building at 

risk 

Dwelling and barn both Grade II 

listed  

Six months ago Officers reported to Members that over the preceding six month 

period the owner of the property had had repair and maintenance work carried 

out to the roof of the cottage and has confirmed that there has been no spread of 

the thatched roof on the outbuilding in the garden.  

The Condition of the building is being monitored by officers and a site visit by the 

Council’s architect to re- assess the issue of ‘spread’ of the thatched roof on the 

listed outbuilding has taken place. 

Your Officers have been advised that repair and maintenance work to the 

outbuilding will commence in the spring. 

  

Track at Tracey Unauthorised Planning permission refused Amended application seeking to address archaeological and landscape issues has 

P
age 45



Item No. 5, Page 8 of 12 

Site Address 

and Case No. 

Unauthorised 

Development 

Notes Update/Action to be taken 

Lane Great Tew track created retrospectively been approved under reference18/02236/FUL. 

A site visit some six months ago confirmed that the landscaping and surface finish 

of the track did not accord with the planning permission that has been granted.  

Since the last update to Members a further planning application has been submitted 

which is presently under consideration. At the time of writing it is anticipated that 

this application will be refused and in light of the non- implementation of 

18/02236/FUL the expediency of taking formal action to seek to remedy the 

breach will be the next consideration. 

Enstone Airfield Ownership A 

2xUnauthorised 

buildings in 

commercial use 

Use of 

compound as a 

lorry park and 

for the siting of 

residential 

caravans 

Scaffolding 

Business, porta 

loo hire business 

and storage of 

containers 

Unauthorised 

storage of waste 

material( a 

County Council 

and Environment 

Agency issue) 

Ownership B 

Since the September 2020 update 

to Members a comprehensive 

review of the northern side of the 

airfield has been undertaken by 

your officers. 

The breaches that have been 

identified are listed in the left hand 

column. 

The next steps in respect of the 

breaches are listed in the right 

hand column. 

Members will note that there are a number of alleged breaches in respect of 

various interests. 

Your officers anticipate that a number of the breaches that have been identified 

maybe progressed by the submission of either retrospective planning applications 

where conditions can be imposed where necessary or lawful development 

certificate applications. 

However, a number of breaches that have come to light appear at the time of 

writing to have either policy objections or are considered by officers to result in 

visual harm to the character and appearance of the area. 

Your officers have advised the relevant interests of the alleged breaches and will be 

engaging with them and agents acting on their behalf over the coming months in 

order to progress matters. 

P
age 46



Item No. 5, Page 9 of 12 

Site Address 

and Case No. 

Unauthorised 

Development 

Notes Update/Action to be taken 

Erection of a run 

of 7 hangars 

Erection of a 

hangar north of 

the grass airstrip 

Extension to an 

existing hangar 

Removal of the 

landscaping to 

the rear of 

hangars/buildings 

to the north of 

the north 

eastern end of 

Green Lane and 

engineering 

operations and 

provision of hard 

standings to 

create car 

parking areas. 

Breach of flying 

hours in respect 

of the grass 

airstrip. 

Shooting 

School 

Alleged 

expansion of 

shooting area 

without 

complying with 

P
age 47



Item No. 5, Page 10 of 12 

Site Address 

and Case No. 

Unauthorised 

Development 

Notes Update/Action to be taken 

noise bund 

construction. 

 

Castle Corner, 

Church Street, 

Wootton 

Non compliance  

with condition 3 

of planning 

permission 

478/83 

Condition 3 precludes the garage 

accommodation attached to the 

property being adapted for living 

purposes. 

 

Under 19/00110/HHD planning 

permission was recently refused 

for conversion of the garage on 

the grounds that given the 

geometry of the road and the lack 

of appropriate street parking 

spaces it would be detrimental to 

the safety and convenience of 

highway users. 

On the basis of evidence gathered to date it appears that the garage has been 

adapted for use as a utility, storage and garage to serve Castle Corner. It has a 

linoleum floor; a wall hung radiator, kitchen units and a sink and worktop. 

 

Notwithstanding the alleged breach of condition attached to 478/83 it has come to 

light in considering the expediency of progressing to formal enforcement action 

that more research into the planning history of the site needs to be undertaken to 

ensure that the breach has been correctly identified. 

The Thatched 

Cottage, 

The Slade, 

Charlbury 

Replacement 

fence 

The landowner is of the opinion 

that the replacement fence is ‘like 

for like’ in terms of its alignment, 

materials and height. 

Officers have taken the view that the fence is not a ‘like for like’ and as such needs 

planning permission. 

 

At the time of writing your officers are in discussion with the owner about 

potential modifications to the fence in the interests of the setting of the listed 

cottage and the character and appearance of the Conservation Area, 

Wychwood 

Grange, 

Fordwells 

Alleged 

unauthorised 

material change 

of use from two 

dwellings to a 

single ‘party 

house’ 

The site formerly consisted of two 

dwellings which are now occupied 

as a single unit accommodating up 

to 30 people 

At the time of writing the breach has ceased and the property is on the market. 

The site will be monitored. 

Doggetts House, 

Churchfields, 

Stonesfield 

Non- compliance 

with planning 

conditions 

OCC Highways has advised that in 

this instance on-site parking should 

be provided in accordance with 

Since the last update a planning application has been submitted in an attempt to 

address the issue of on-site parking provision. 

 

P
age 48



Item No. 5, Page 11 of 12 

Site Address 

and Case No. 

Unauthorised 

Development 

Notes Update/Action to be taken 

attached to 

11/1252/P/FP 

which relate to 

access, parking 

and a turning 

area that has not 

been installed. 

the planning conditions for 

highway safety reasons. 

Land adjoining  

The Old Quarry, 

Ledwell Road 

Great Tew 

Oxon 

Alleged change 

of use of land to 

motocross. 

Construction of 

motocross track 

This is a recent complaint for 

which no planning permission has 

been granted. The site is located 

within the open countryside 

abutting a right of way and in close 

proximity to a residential use. 

Your Officers have been in discussions with the contravener and have been advised 

that the track will be removed by the end of March. 

Annexe at 

Bondeni, Station 

Road, Kingham 

Use of annex as 

a separate 

dwelling/sub 

division of plot 

A CLEUD application has recently 

been refused for a separate 

dwelling 

The intimate relationship of the annex with the main house results in a poor level 

of amenity for both properties. 

 

In light of this the expediency of taking formal action to seek to remedy the breach 

is under consideration at the time of writing. 

Southfield 

House, Sandford-

St-Martin 

Alleged 

unauthorised 

ground works 

and installation 

of tennis court 

 A planning application has been submitted in an attempt to regularise the breach   

which is presently under consideration. 

Barwood  

Homes,Tackley 

Unauthorised 

footpath 

construction 

It appears that the ground levels of 

the footpath construction are at 

variance with the approved levels. 

The resultant footpath that runs through and across the site is very elevated and 

appears as a visually prominent feature. 

 

In light of the above the expediency of taking formal action to seek to remedy the 

breach is under consideration at the time of writing. 

41 Manor Road, 

Bladon 

Alleged non-

compliance with 

18/02054/FUL- 

land levels lower 

than approved 

and non-

At the time of writing this matter 

is still under initial investigation.  

Members will be updated verbally on progress at the Sub Committee meeting of 

the 1 March. 

P
age 49



Item No. 5, Page 12 of 12 

Site Address 

and Case No. 

Unauthorised 

Development 

Notes Update/Action to be taken 

compliance with 

CTMP 

(Condition 18) 

 

P
age 50



Item No. 6, Page 1 of 12 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS Agenda Item No. 6   

 

Application Types Key 

 

Suffix 

 

  Suffix  

ADV Advertisement Consent LBC Listed Building Consent 

CC3REG County Council Regulation 3 LBD Listed Building Consent - Demolition 

CC4REG County Council Regulation 4 OUT Outline Application 

CM County Matters RES Reserved Matters Application 

FUL Full Application S73 Removal or Variation of Condition/s 

HHD Householder Application POB Discharge of Planning Obligation/s 

CLP 

CLASSM 

 

HAZ 

PN42 

 

PNT 

NMA 

WDN 

Certificate of Lawfulness Proposed 

Change of Use – Agriculture to 

Commercial 

Hazardous Substances Application 

Householder Application under Permitted 

Development legislation. 

Telecoms Prior Approval 

Non Material Amendment 

Withdrawn 

 

CLE 

CND 

PDET28 

PN56 

POROW 

TCA 

TPO 

 

FDO 

Certificate of Lawfulness Existing 

Discharge of Conditions 

Agricultural Prior Approval 

Change of Use Agriculture to Dwelling 

Creation or Diversion of Right of Way 

Works to Trees in a Conservation Area 

Works to Trees subject of a Tree 

Preservation Order 

Finally Disposed Of 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

 

Description 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

Description 

APP 

REF 

P1REQ 

P3APP 

P4APP 

Approve 

Refuse  

Prior Approval Required 

Prior Approval Approved 

Prior Approval Approved 

RNO 

ROB 

P2NRQ 

P3REF 

P4REF 

Raise no objection  

Raise Objection  

Prior Approval Not Required 

Prior Approval Refused 

Prior Approval Refused 

 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS 

Week Ending 8th February 2021 

 

  

Application Number.  

 

Ward. 

 

 Decision. 

 

1.  20/00974/FUL Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Works to include change of use of land to provide 10 parking spaces and the siting of 10 

storage containers together with associated hard and soft landscaping. 

Land North Of Langston Priory Workshops Station Road 

Turngallant Ltd 

 

2.  20/02252/HHD Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of rear two storey extension (amended) 

Medlar Cottage 26 - 27 Taynton Burford 

Mr Mark Lea 

 

Page 51

Agenda Item 6



Item No. 6, Page 2 of 12 
 

3.  20/02253/LBC Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

The proposal is for internal and external alterations to include demolition of modern 

extensions and erection of rear a two storey extension, and the re-thatching of existing roof. 

(amended) 

Medlar Cottage 26 - 27 Taynton Burford 

Mr Mark Lea 

 

4.  20/02339/CND Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 3 (materials),5 (Construction method statement),6 (Landscaping),7 

(Tree protection),  8 (Biodiversity) and 9 (Drainage) of planning permission 19/02821/S73 

Park House Park Lane Long Hanborough 

Keble Homes Limited 

 

5.  20/02310/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Partial demolition of existing garage and rear extension and replace with a two-storey side 

extension. 

Pipers 163 Wroslyn Road Freeland 

Mr G Bull 

 

6.  20/02311/LBC Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Internal and external alterations to include partial demolition of existing garage and rear 

extension and replace with a two-storey side extension together with changes to internal 

layout. 

Pipers 163 Wroslyn Road Freeland 

Mr G Bull 

 

 

7.  20/02484/HHD Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of below ground cycle store with oak doors, rebuild a collapsed dry stone retaining 

garden wall, addition of bin store. 

Old Chapel Chapel Lane Shipton Under Wychwood 

Ms Susy Mundy 

 

8.  20/02659/FUL The Bartons APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of two detached dwellings and associated works (amended plans) 

Land North West Of 33 South Street Middle Barton 

C/o Agent 

9.  20/02698/FUL Hailey, Minster Lovell & 

Leafield 

WDN 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion of attached barn to provide additional living accommodation. 

The Leazings Witney Lane Leafield 

Mrs Sarah Hill 

 

Page 52



Item No. 6, Page 3 of 12 
 

10.  20/03032/LBC Hailey, Minster Lovell & 

Leafield 

WDN 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to convert attached barn to provide additional living 

accommodation. 

The Leazings Witney Lane Leafield 

Mrs Sarah Hill 

 

11.  20/02716/LBC Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal alterations to refurbish existing bar servery. 

Bay Tree Hotel Sheep Street Burford 

Mrs Andrea Arnold 

 

12.  20/02726/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Removal of existing conservatory and study. Erection of single storey extension to enlarge 

existing kitchen and create a new home office with link between the two. 

32 High Street Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mr Matthews 

 

13.  20/02727/LBC Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to remove existing conservatory and study, erection of single 

storey extension to enlarge existing kitchen and create a new home office with link between 

the two. Replacement windows and doors and changes to layout of first floor bathroom 

facilities. 

32 High Street Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mr Matthews 

 

14.  20/02833/FUL Kingham, Rollright & Enstone WDN 

  

Demolition of existing stone barn and the construction of detached self contained living 

accommodation. 

Broad Close Little Tew Road Church Enstone 

N Byrom 

 

15.  20/02870/FUL Kingham, Rollright & Enstone APP 

  

Formation of equestrian training menage in paddock adjacent to Radford House 

Radford House Radford Chipping Norton 

Caroline Ledger 

 

16.  20/02874/HHD Chadlington and Churchill WDN 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of a single storey studio and workshop 

Coldron Mill Church Lane Spelsbury 

Mr Stephen Barber 

 

Page 53



Item No. 6, Page 4 of 12 
 

17.  20/02875/HHD Hailey, Minster Lovell & 

Leafield 

APP 

  

Alterations and erection of triple garage with room above. 

Leafield Pig Farm Purrants Lane Leafield 

Mr And Mrs Dave And Liz Johns 

 

18.  20/03217/FUL Ascott and Shipton APP 

  

Conversion of existing garage workshop to form art and card sales shop. 

Forge Garage The Green Ascott Under Wychwood 

Mrs Motoko Wild 

 

19.  20/02964/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of front entrance porch. 

Lyndale Witney Road Finstock 

Ms Rachel Chapman 

 

20.  20/02971/LBC Kingham, Rollright & Enstone APP 

  

Internal alterations to include removal of a staircase and changes to floor layouts (part 

retrospective) 

The Long Barn Oxford Road Old Chalford 

c/o Agent 

 

21.  20/02992/FUL Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Erection of an agricultural grain store. 

Rynehill House Kingham Chipping Norton 

Mr And Mrs P Ambler 

 

22.  20/03062/FUL Kingham, Rollright & Enstone WDN 

  

Erection of an agricultural building. 

Westbury Farm Little Tew Road Church Enstone 

Mr Frank Creese 

 

23.  20/03069/HHD Burford APP 

  

Installation of new wooden vehicular entrance and pedestrian gates and replace existing metal 

railings with a new dry stone walling to match existing. 

Signet Farm South Signet Burford 

Mr James Hill 

 

24.  20/03070/LBC Burford APP 

  

External alterations to install new wooden vehicular entrance and pedestrian gates and 

replace existing metal railings with a new dry stone walling to match existing. 

Signet Farm South Signet Burford 

Mr James Hill 

 

Page 54



Item No. 6, Page 5 of 12 
 

25.  20/03102/FUL Ascott and Shipton APP 

  

Erection of detached building comprising of three stables and a tack room. 

Land At Priory Lane Ascott Under Wychwood 

Mr Toby Chapple 

 

26.  20/03120/FUL Chipping Norton WDN 

  

Erection of a detached two storey dwelling with associated parking 

Land Off Toy Lane Chipping Norton 

Robin Scotter 

 

27.  20/03122/HHD The Bartons APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Creation of a balcony terrace over existing store on rear elevation, replacement of first floor 

window with patio doors. 

48 South Street Middle Barton Chipping Norton 

Mr And Mrs Arnold 

 

28.  20/03450/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of detached garage/workshop. 

West End House West End Combe 

Mr And Mrs R Sherrott 

 

29.  20/03180/FUL Chadlington and Churchill WDN 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion of existing agricultural structures to form three new residential dwellings with 

associated external modifications and construction of ancillary outbuilding 

Mount Farm Junction Road Churchill 

Mr Thomas Heywood-Lonsdale 

 

30.  20/03183/HHD Kingham, Rollright & Enstone APP 

  

Single Storey Side & Rear Extensions 

Mendoza Coxs Lane Enstone 

Mr & Mrs R Kiss 

 

31.  20/03192/HHD The Bartons APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion of existing garage to create additional bedroom with en-suite. 

11 South Street Middle Barton Chipping Norton 

Mr Michael Evetts 

32.  20/03211/FUL Kingham, Rollright & Enstone APP 

  

Alterations to the western side of glasshouse in walled garden to incorporate three pairs of 

metal glazed doors and sidelights. 

Soho Farmhouse Great Tew Chipping Norton 

Soho House Group UK Ltd 

 

Page 55



Item No. 6, Page 6 of 12 
 

33.  20/03212/S73 Kingham, Rollright & Enstone APP 

  

Variation of condition 2 (approved plans) of planning permission 20/00898/HHD to remove 

the requirement for access from the main house via a below ground tunnel and associated 

staircase within the existing Grade II listed building. 

Maplewood Barn Great Tew Chipping Norton 

Mr and Mrs Beckham 

 

34.  20/03219/HHD Charlbury and Finstock WDN 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Proposed garage with office above 

Green Oak 3A Lees Heights Charlbury 

Mr A Benka 

 

35.  20/03223/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Two storey side extension and alterations to existing building. 

34 Westland Way Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Dan & Victoria Woodcock 

 

36.  20/03225/LBC Ascott and Shipton APP 

  

Replace the bottom third of the rear windows with stonework with smaller opening windows 

above 

Milton End High Street Lyneham 

Mrs Alexandra Buckley-Sharp 

 

37.  20/03226/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of 3.0m x 2.4m garden studio 

3 Park End Cottages Park End Bladon 

Tom Sayers 

 

38.  20/03458/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Erection of two storey rear and side extensions to replace existing garage and utility and 

construction of new garage. 

20 Blenheim Lane Freeland Witney 

Mr And Mrs Lay 

 

39.  20/03472/HHD Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of two storey extension and covered veranda, both to rear elevation. 

9 Orchard Rise Burford Oxfordshire 

Mr And Mrs L Baker 

 

Page 56



Item No. 6, Page 7 of 12 
 

40.  20/03474/FUL Chipping Norton REF 

  

Demolition of the existing three dwellings (1-3 Four Winds)  and the erection of six new 

dwellings 

1 Four Winds Wards Road Chipping Norton 

Mr Burton 

 

41.  20/03245/HHD Burford APP 

  

Rear extension 

Westhall Barn Westhall Hill Fulbrook 

Mr Toby Staveley 

 

42.  20/03250/FUL Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Installation of manifold chamber, two 25kW ground source heat pumps and a 500litre tank 

and 500litre buffer vessel with associated pipework and trenches. 

The Elms Church Lane Chipping Norton 

Mr Peter J Bartlett 

 

43.  20/03252/HHD Brize Norton and Shilton APP 

  

Alterations to include erection of a single story rear and side extensions and replacement 

porch. 

The Rickyard Asthall Leigh Witney 

Mr Fred Mendelsohn 

 

44.  20/03485/HHD Chipping Norton APP 

  

Conversion of existing garaging to create additional living space and erection of single storey 

side extension to provide new garage. 

4 Colston Court Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr Christopher Gascoigne 

 

45.  20/03261/CLP Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

  

Certificate of lawfulness (Erection of single storey rear extension). 

 

Refer to drawings for details. 

74 Nethercote Road Tackley Kidlington 

Mr And Mrs G Roberts 

 

46.  20/03286/FUL Kingham, Rollright &Enstone REF 

  

Conversion of existing barn to create a new dwelling 

Farm Building At E426163 N224706 Kingham Oxfordshire 

Mr W Morris 

 

Page 57



Item No. 6, Page 8 of 12 
 

47.  20/03300/HHD The Bartons APP 

  

Installation of a swimming pool and erection of plant room/store building, erection of tennis 

court and associated engineering and landscaping works 

Flight Hill Farm Flight Hill Sandford St Martin 

Mr M Holland 

 

48.  20/03301/LBC The Bartons APP 

  

Installation of a swimming pool and erection of plant room/store building, erection of tennis 

court and associated engineering and landscaping works 

Flight Hill Farm Flight Hill Sandford St Martin 

Mr M Holland 

 

49.  20/03304/HHD Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Rear/side extension with loft conversion 

3 Petre Cottages Foscot Chipping Norton 

Mr And Mrs Townsend 

 

50.  20/03311/HHD Burford APP 

  

Erection of new garage building 

Mullions Meadow Lane Fulbrook 

Mr Henry Powell-Jones 

 

51.  20/03307/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Demolition of existing garage and the erection of a new garden room 

4 Thames Gardens Charlbury Chipping Norton 

Alasdair and Christine Donaldson 

 

52.  20/03309/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

  

Conversion of loft to create first floor accommodation including rear dormer. 

25 Greenfield Road Stonesfield Witney 

Mrs Rachel Clark 

 

53.  20/03331/HHD Chipping Norton REF 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of two storey and first floor extension. 

58 The Leys Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr S Cruikshank 

 

54.  20/03333/HHD Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of single storey extension. 

58 The Leys Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr S Cruickshank 

 

Page 58



Item No. 6, Page 9 of 12 
 

55.  20/03337/S73 Kingham, Rollright & Enstone APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of condition 2 of permission 20/00450/HHD to allow amendments to the site plan 

to include details of the proposed landscaping works and erection of pergola. 

Felloes Barn Church Street Kingham 

Mr Brian McCappin 

 

56.  20/03338/FUL Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Extension of existing barn 

Estate Office Bruern Chipping Norton 

H Astor 

 

57.  20/03346/FUL Kingham, Rollright & Enstone APP 

  

Installation of photovoltaic panels on the roofs of three buildings (Warehouse, Prep-Kitchen 

and Electric Barn Cinema). 

Soho Farmhouse Great Tew Chipping Norton 

Soho House UK Limited 

 

58.  20/03492/HHD The Bartons APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Single storey extension 

Clover Cottage Manor Road Sandford St Martin 

Mrs L Catling 

 

59.  20/03519/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Removal of existing conservatory and erection of single storey rear extension. 

31 Churchill Way Long Hanborough Witney 

Mr And Mrs D Dobson 

 

60.  20/03352/HHD Kingham, Rollright & Enstone APP 

  

Rebuilding of former stable block to use as annex to main dwelling (application previously 

approved under 18/02956/HHD) 

Brick House Lower End Salford 

Mr Nigel Fawdry 

 

61.  20/03353/HHD Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Alterations to include changes to outbuildings and  new vehicular access, two storey 

extension with cellar beneath accessed by internal and external stairs. Associated landscaping. 

Drive Cottage Sarsden Chipping Norton 

Mr And Mrs Gallagher 

 

Page 59



Item No. 6, Page 10 of 12 
 

62.  20/03354/LBC Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Internal and external alterations to include changes to outbuildings and  new vehicular access, 

two storey extension with cellar beneath accessed by internal and external stairs. 

Drive Cottage Sarsden Chipping Norton 

Mr And Mrs Gallagher 

 

63.  20/03539/HHD Chipping Norton APP 

  

Replace existing ground floor front bay window with new sash window. Formation of 

vehicular access and provision of off-street parking. 

30 West End Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr Darren Harrison 

 

64.  20/03364/FUL Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Replacement two storey detached dwelling (part retrospective) 

Stonefield Lodge 210A The Hill Burford 

Mr And Mrs Lentin 

 

65.  20/03367/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Erection of a two storey front extension along with with single rear extensions to include 

alterations to facade. Extended dropped kerb for additional off-street parking (amended) 

34 Crecy Walk Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mr Andy Henderson And Ms Michelle Laynes 

 

66.  20/03390/FUL Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Change of use to ground floor from office space to a residential unit 

Alfred Groves And Sons Ltd Groves Business Centre Shipton Road 

Mr Simon Wilkins 

 

67.  20/03403/LBC Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Structural repair works to the Rotunda 

The Mansion Ditchley Park Enstone 

Mr Mike Montagu 

 

68.  21/00059/HHD Ascott and Shipton APP 

  

Raising of existing roof levels to form additional first floor living areas 

Combe Croft High Street Lyneham 

Mr Michael Ody 

 

Page 60



Item No. 6, Page 11 of 12 
 

69.  20/03410/HHD Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Partial replacement of existing conservatory; conversion of garage to habitable space; 

conversion of loft to habitable space with 4 rooflights and an opaque glazed side window; 

extension of existing parking area and removal of a section of stone walling to front of 

property to facilitate access. (Amended Plans) 

10 Sylvester Close Burford Oxfordshire 

Christiaan Terblanche 

 

70.  21/00097/HHD Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Erection of a replacement garage/garden room 

Touchstone Sarsden Chipping Norton 

Mr Tony Powell 

 

71.  20/03434/HHD Kingham, Rollright & Enstone APP 

  

Single storey rear extension 

The Cottage Chapel Lane Enstone 

Mr M Sawyer 

 

72.  20/03435/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Proposed single storey extension 

27 Nine Acres Close Charlbury Chipping Norton 

Mr Dale Norris 

 

73.  20/03443/HHD Kingham, Rollright & Enstone APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Extension and internal alteration works to the existing main property, extension works to 

existing garage to create a garden store and proposed new outbuilding to provide additional 

space for home gym and office. 

Dewlands Church End Great Rollright 

Mr Peter Graham 

 

74.  20/03453/HHD The Bartons APP 

  

Part single and part two-storey rear extension, infill porch canopy, raise flat roof to garage 

and utility room, partial conversion of garage to gym, insertion of roof lights and new door 

and window openings, application of a white thin coat render to external elevations of rear 

extension and rear elevation of utility room. 

8 Frances Road Middle Barton Chipping Norton 

Jay & Sam Sinclair-Pearson 

75.  20/03476/LBC Milton Under Wychwood APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Various internal alterations including plaster boarding and provision of insulation, creation of a 

partition wall and pointing of internal stonework. (Retrospective). 

The Forge 30 Church Street Idbury 

Mr J Hartman 

 

Page 61



Item No. 6, Page 12 of 12 
 

76.  20/03514/FUL Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Demolition of the existing detached garage. Construction of a single storey, rear and side 

wrap around extension with flat roof. 

26 Abelwood Road Long Hanborough Witney 

Hannah Willets 

 

77.  20/03516/CND Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Condition 17 Construction and Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) of permission 

20/00991/FUL 

Land North Of Gas Lane And Ascott Road Shipton Under Wychwood 

Mr Vince O'Brien 

 

78.  20/03538/HHD Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion of garage. Erection of timber garden store/shed. 

Jersey Cottage 3 Home Farm Close Shipton Under Wychwood 

Mr. G Dixon 

 

79.  21/00065/PNT Kingham, Rollright & Enstone APP 

  

Installation of BT wooden pole (7.2m above ground) in relation to fixed line broadband 

electronic communications apparatus. 

Street Record Gagingwell Chipping Norton 

Ms Julie Calladine 

 

80.  21/00192/PDET28 Ascott and Shipton P2NRQ 

  

Construction of two polytunnels. 

Honeydale Farm Station Road Shipton Under Wychwood 

Mr Ian Wilkinson 

 

APPEAL DECISION(S) 

APPLICATION NO: 19/02855/FUL 

 

The development proposed is demolition of the existing garage and studio flat and the construction 

of a new sustainable 2 bedroom cottage. – The Gables, 10 Enstone Road, CHARLBURY. 

 

APPEAL DISMISSED 

______________________________________________________________________ 

 

APPLICATION NO: 20/01279/HHD 

 

The development is described as a 2 storey rear extension – replacing an existing single storey 

extension.  Also a new garage and works to an existing pigsty – Normans 3 Church Road, 

CHADLINGTON. 

 

APPEAL DISMISSED 

______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Page 62


	Agenda
	4 Applications for Development
	Contents
	Chevrons, Swan Lane, Burford
	Chevrons, Swan Lane, Burford
	High Thatch, Park Lane, Long Hanborough
	Fardon House, Frog Lane, Milton Under Wychwood
	5 - 12 Chipping Norton Road, Chadlington

	5 Progress on Enforcement Cases
	Front Sheet
	Annex A
	SECTION A
	SECTION B
	SECTION C

	6 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers and any Withdrawn Applications; and Appeal Decisions

